

# MR01<sub>(ef)</sub>

## **Registration of a Charge**

ALTERA PRODUCTION UK LIMITED Company Name: Company Number: 03142470

Received for filing in Electronic Format on the: 12/01/2023

## **Details of Charge**

Date of creation: 06/01/2023

Charge code: 0314 2470 0009

Persons entitled: **DNB BANK ASA, NEW YORK BRANCH** 

Brief description:

Contains fixed charge(s).

Contains negative pledge.

## **Authentication of Form**

This form was authorised by: a person with an interest in the registration of the charge.

### Authentication of Instrument

Certification statement: I CERTIFY THAT SAVE FOR MATERIAL REDACTED PURSUANT TO S.859G OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2006 THE ELECTRONIC COPY INSTRUMENT DELIVERED AS PART OF THIS APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION IS A CORRECT COPY OF THE ORIGINAL INSTRUMENT.

Certified by: NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT LLP





## CERTIFICATE OF THE REGISTRATION OF A CHARGE

Company number: 3142470

Charge code: 0314 2470 0009

The Registrar of Companies for England and Wales hereby certifies that a charge dated 6th January 2023 and created by ALTERA PRODUCTION UK LIMITED was delivered pursuant to Chapter A1 Part 25 of the Companies Act 2006 on 12th January 2023.

Given at Companies House, Cardiff on 13th January 2023

The above information was communicated by electronic means and authenticated by the Registrar of Companies under section 1115 of the Companies Act 2006





I certify that, save for material redacted pursuant to s.859G of the Companies Act 2006, this copy instrument is a correct copy of the original instrument.

2023

Norton Rose Fill bright LLP

Date: 11 January 2023

6 January Dated

CLIPPER L.L.C. ALTERA PRODUCTION UK LIMITED SALAMANDER PRODUCTION (UK) LIMITED THE RELATED PARTIES SET FORTH ON SCHEDULE 1 TO

DNB BANK ASA, NEW YORK BRANCH

INTRA-GROUP LOAN ASSIGNMENT AND SUBORDINATION AGREEMENT

NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT

EU-#558166716-v6

## Contents

Page

# Clause

1	Definitions and interpretation
2	Assignment
3	Service Entities
4	Restrictions
5	Perfection
6	Enforcement
7	Application of proceeds
8	Deferral and non-petitioning undertakings
9	Subordination9
10	General undertakings11
11	Duration of the security11
12	Third party security protections12
13	Enforcement costs
14	Remedies13
15	Power of attorney13
16	Other provisions14
17	Governing law and enforcement15
Scl	nedule 1 Information25
Scl	nedule 2 Form of Accession Deed (Intra-Group Loan Assignment)

THIS DEED is dated 6 January 2023 and made between:

- CLIPPER L.L.C. (as described in more detail in Schedule 1, the Borrower); (1)
- ALTERA PRODUCTION UK LIMITED (as described in more detail in Schedule 1); and (2)
- SALAMANDER PRODUCTION (UK) LIMITED (as described in more detail in Schedule 1); (3)

(the parties under (1) to (3) inclusive are collectively referred to as the Assignors and each an Assignor and shall include any Additional Assignor); and

- the Related Parties (as described in more detail in Schedule 1) (including any Additional (4)Related Parties); and
- (5) DNB BANK ASA, NEW YORK BRANCH acting in its capacity as security agent for the Finance Parties (the Security Agent).

IT IS AGREED as follows:

#### **Definitions and interpretation**

Definitions

Terms defined in the Facility Agreement have, unless defined differently in this Deed, the same meaning when used in this Deed. In addition, in this Deed:

Acceleration Event has the meaning given in sub-clause (b) of the definition of Acceleration Date.

1.1

Accession Deed (Intra-Group Loan Assignment) means a document substantially in the form set out in Schedule 2.

Accrued Service Fees mean Service Fees that have been invoiced by the Service Entity to the Assignor earlier than thirty (30) days prior to the proposed date of payment. Accrued Service Fees shall cease to constitute Accrued Service Fees once the Event of Default in respect of which such Service Fees constituted Accrued Service Fees ceases to be continuing.

Additional Assignor means any party (other than the Security Agent) that executes an Accession Deed (Intra-Group Loan Assignment) in the capacity of an Assignor.

Additional Related Party means any party (other than the Security Agent) that executes an Accession Deed (Intra-Group Loan Assignment) in the capacity of a Related Party

Assigned Assets means those assets which are from time to time the subject of clause 2.2 and clause 3.2 including, but not limited to, the Assignor Assets, all Monetary Claims and Rights of an Assignor and/or an Additional Assignor and/or a Service Entity including rights to any sums payable to the Assignor and/or a Service Entity and the full benefit of any security, options, indemnities, guarantees and warranties.

Assignor Assets means all Liabilities now or hereafter due, owing or incurred to any Assignor by any Related Party which is the Permitted Parent or a Subsidiary of the Permitted Parent.

Companies Act means the Norwegian Limited Liability Companies Act of 1997 (as amended from time to time).

Current Service Fees mean any Service Fees other than Accrued Service Fees.

**Disposal** means any transfer or other disposal of an asset or of an interest in an asset, or the creation of any Right over an asset in favour of another person, but not the creation of any Encumbrance. **Disposed** has the correlated meaning.

**Distribution** means any payment by or distribution of assets of the Assignors (or any of them), whether in cash, property, securities or otherwise.

Enforcement Act means the Norwegian Enforcement Act of 1992 (as amended from time to time).

Enforcement Time means any time at which an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing.

Excluded FFTA Accounts has the meaning given to it in the Common Terms Agreement.

**FA Legislation** means the Norwegian financial agreements act of 18 December 2020 No. 146 (No. *finansavtaleloven*) and the Norwegian regulation on financial agreements of 19 September 2022 No. 1612 (No. *finansavtaleforskriften*) (in each case as amended or replaced from time to time).

**Facility Agreement** means the secured term loan facility agreement dated 28 August 2019 as amended and restated from time to time up to and including the RED Amendment and Restatement Agreement, made between (amongst others) the Borrower as borrower, the banks and financial institutions listed as facility lenders in Schedule 1 (*The Facility Lenders and the Commitments*) therein and the Security Agent as facility agent and Security Agent as the same may from time to time be amended, novated, supplemented, extended, restated or replaced (however fundamentally, including by an increase of any size in any facility made available under it, the alteration of the nature, purpose or period of any such facility or any change of any of its parties).

**Facility Beneficiary Liabilities** means all Liabilities now or hereafter due, owing or incurred by the Assignors (or any of them) to the Finance Parties arising pursuant to or in connection with the Finance Documents.

Facility Beneficiary Security means the Encumbrance created by this Deed and each other Security Document to secure the payment and discharge of Indebtedness.

FFTA Entities mean any of Holdco Cross Guarantor and its Subsidiaries.

FFTA Intercompany Loans means any Intercompany Loan by and between FFTA Entities.

**Financial Collateral** has the meaning given to it by the Financial Collateral Arrangements (No 2) Regulations 2003.

#### Insolvency Legislation means:

- (a) the Insolvency Act 1986 and secondary legislation made under it; and
- (b) any other primary or secondary legislation in England and/or Scotland from time to time relating to insolvency or reorganisation.

Insurance Proceeds means the proceeds of any Insurances.

**Intercompany Loans** means any intercompany loan or advance and related obligations that are owed by an Assignor to a Related Party. For the avoidance of doubt, Service Fees shall not constitute Intercompany Loans.

**Liabilities** means all present and future liabilities and obligations at any time for the payment or repayment of money, including (without limitation) all rights of indemnity, reimbursement and contribution, whether they are:

- (a) express or implied;
- (b) present, future or contingent;
- (c) joint or several;
- (d) incurred as a principal or surety or in any other manner; or
- (e) originally owing to the person claiming payment or repayment or acquired by that person from someone else.

**Minimum Liquidity Requirement** means, at that time, the aggregate of the amounts standing to the credit of the bank accounts of the FFTA Entities (other than Excluded FFTA Accounts) is not less than fifteen million Dollars (\$15,000,000).

**Monetary Claims** means all moneys whatsoever which are now, or later become, payable (actually or contingently) to the Assignors as arising out of the contracts set out in a certificate issued to the Security Agent on the date of this Deed and any future claims payable to the Assignors which are required to be assigned as security in accordance with clause 5.2.

**Mortgage Act** means the Norwegian mortgage and liens act of 1980 no. 2 (as amended from time to time).

**Officer**, in relation to a person, means any officer, employee, director or agent of that person (or of such person's general partner).

#### Permitted Encumbrance means:

- (a) any repairer's or outfitter's possessory lien for a sum in aggregate at any time not (except with the prior written consent of the Security Agent) exceeding twenty five million Dollars (\$25,000,000) individually on the Vessel and any other vessel serviced by such Service Entity;
- (c) any lien on the Vessel or other vessel serviced by such Service Entity for master's, officer's or crew's wages arising in accordance with usual maritime practice which are not overdue;
- (d) any lien for salvage;
- (e) any lien arising in the ordinary course of business or operation of the Vessel or other vessel serviced by such Service Entity by statute or by operation of law in respect of obligations which are not more than thirty (30) days overdue or which are being contested in good faith by appropriate proceedings (and for the payment of which adequate reserves have been provided) so long as, solely in the case of the Vessel, any such proceedings or the continued existence of such lien do not in the opinion of the Security Agent involve any likelihood of the sale, forfeiture or loss of, or of any interest in, the Vessel or any proceeds of a Total Loss;
- (f) any Encumbrance arising out of any claims, judgments, or awards against a Service Entity which are being contested in good faith by that Service Entity or which are the subject of a pending appeal (and for the payment of which adequate reserves have been provided) so long as any such claims, judgments or awards or the continued existence of such Encumbrance do not in the reasonable opinion of the Security Agent involve any likelihood of the sale, forfeiture or loss of, or of any interest in, the Vessel or any proceeds of a Total Loss;
- (g) any Encumbrance created by the Security Documents; and
- (h) to the extent any Service Entity provides services for entities other than the Assignors (the Other Service Recipients), liens in the Insurances and Insurance Proceeds of the Service

Entity to the extent relating to such Other Service Recipient or such Other Service Recipient's assets (of the substantially similar type and scope as the lien on Insurances provided by the Service Entities under this Deed or any other Security Document).

**Permitted Payments** means any payment or repayment of the Subordinated Liabilities permitted under clause 10.

**Post-Closing Intercompany Loans** means any Intercompany Loan (other than FFTA Intercompany Loans) arising on or after the date hereof.

PPSA means, in respect of Australia, the Personal Properties Securities Act 2009 (Cth).

**Pre-Closing Intercompany Loans** means any Intercompany Loan (other than FFTA Intercompany Loans) arising prior to the date hereof.

**Receiver** means one or more receivers or managers appointed, or to be appointed, under this Deed.

**RED Amendment and Restatement Agreement** means the amendment and restatement agreement made between (amongst others) the Borrower as borrower, the banks and financial institutions listed as facility lenders therein and the Security Agent as facility agent and Security Agent.

**Replacement Service Entities** means the Permitted Parent and/or any Subsidiary of Permitted Parent, in each case, that provides vessel or corporate-level services for (or on behalf of) any Assignor and becomes an Additional Related Party pursuant to clause 8.6 to the extent it is not already a Related Party under this Deed by executing an Accession Deed (Intra-Group Loan Assignment).

**Right** means any right, title, privilege, power or immunity, or any interest or remedy, of any kind, whether present or future, it is personal or proprietary.

Service Agreements mean each management services agreement or similar agreement between an Assignor, on the one hand, and a Service Entity, on the other, governing the provision of vessel or corporate-level services for (or on behalf of) any Assignor in accordance with clause 19.8 of the Common Terms Agreement.

Service Entities means the Permitted Parent and/or each Subsidiary of Permitted Parent that, in each case, provides vessel or corporate-level services for (or on behalf of) any Assignor pursuant to the Service Agreements (and Service Entity means each such person individually).

Service Fees mean fees and related obligations owing by an Assignor to a Service Entity pursuant to a Service Agreement.

**Subordinated Liabilities** mean Post-Closing Intercompany Loans, Pre-Closing Intercompany Loans, FFTA Intercompany Loans and Accrued Service Fees and, upon an Acceleration Event that is continuing, Service Fees.

**Subsidiary** means any Subsidiary (as such term is defined in the Facility Agreement) and, in respect of any company or corporation incorporated in The Netherlands, a 'dochtermaatschappij' within the meaning of Section 2:24a of the Dutch Civil Code (regardless of whether the shares or voting rights in the shares in such company are held directly or indirectly through another 'dochtermaatschappij').

Third Parties Act means the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.

**Threshold Amount** means, during any given calendar month, an amount of Service Fees up to \$300,000 for all Assignors in aggregate.

- 1.2 Each Assignor expressly acknowledges and agrees to clauses 12 (Security and Application of Moneys) 15.2 (Acceleration), and 18 (Set-Off) of the Facility Agreement and hereby irrevocably authorises the Borrower to act on its behalf as its agent in relation to all of the Finance Documents to which that Assignor is or becomes a party for all purposes referred to in, and on the terms of, the Facility Agreement as if all references in those clauses to a Security Party were references to that Assignor.
- 1.3 Clause 1 (*Definitions and Interpretation*) of the Facility Agreement and any other provision of the Facility Agreement which, by its terms, purports to apply to all of the Finance Documents and/or any Security Party shall apply to this Deed as if set out in it but with all necessary changes and as if references in the provision to Finance Documents referred to this Deed and references in the provision to the Security Parties (or any of them) referred to the Assignors.
- 1.4 In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between any of the terms of this Deed and any provisions of the Facility Agreement, the relevant provisions of the Facility Agreement shall prevail.

#### Miscellaneous

- 1.5 Where this Deed imposes an obligation on the Assignors (or any of them) to do something if required or requested by the Security Agent, it will do so as soon as practicable after it becomes aware of the requirement or request.
- 1.6 This Deed may be executed in counterparts.
- 1.7 No term of this Deed may be amended or waived except by the written agreement of the parties hereto.

#### Third parties

- 1.8 The rights expressly conferred on each of the Finance Parties, each Receiver and each Officer of the Security Agent or a Receiver under this Deed are enforceable by each of them under the Third Parties Act.
- 1.9 No other term of this Deed is enforceable under the Third Parties Act by anyone who is not a party to this Deed.
- 1.10 The parties to this Deed may terminate this Deed or vary any of its terms without the consent of any third party. However, they may not terminate this Deed or vary any of its terms if this would have the effect of terminating or adversely affecting the Rights of a Receiver or of an Officer of the Security Agent or a Receiver under this Deed without such Officer's consent, but only to the extent that such Officer has notified the Security Agent that such Officer intends to enforce that clause at the time of the termination or variation.

#### Effective Time

1.11 In respect of Altera Infrastructure (Philippines) Inc., its obligations under this Deed shall only become effective upon the approval by the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission of the application for amendment of its articles of incorporation in accordance with the requirements of the RED Amendment and Restatement Agreement.

#### 2 Assignment

- 2.1 The assignment contained in this clause 2:
  - (a) is given to the Security Agent as facility agent and Security Agent for the Finance Parties;
  - (b) secures the payment, discharge and performance of the Indebtedness; and

- (c) is given with full title guarantee.
- 2.2 Each Assignor assigns absolutely and unconditionally all of the Rights, title and interests (a) which it now has granted in its favour, (b) in and to the Monetary Claims and (c) in and to all Rights which it obtains at any time in the future under or in respect of the Assignor Assets and Service Agreements.
- 2.3 The undertakings of each Assignor under this Deed and the assignment contained in this clause 2 are given to the Security Agent as facility agent and Security Agent for the Finance Parties.
- 2.4 The parties to this Deed designate that Assigned Assets which constitute collateral is under the control of the Security Agent.
- 2.5 By its execution of this Deed, each of the Related Parties acknowledges the assignments in clause 2.
- 2.6 For each Assignor and/or Service Entity incorporated in or having its main place of business in Norway:
  - (a) For the purpose of the Encumbrance and all other obligations of this Deed, the Indebtedness are limited to \$700,000,000. In addition, the Encumbrance secures interest, default interest, costs and expenses;
  - (b) The obligations under this Deed will be limited, subject to sub-paragraph 2.6(c) below, by the mandatory provisions of law applicable to the Assignors and Service Entities limiting the legal capacity or ability of the Assignors and Service Entities to provide security under this Deed (including, but not limited to, the provisions of Sections 8-7 and 8-10, cf. 1-3 and 1-4 of the Companies Act), regulating unlawful financial assistance and other prohibited loans, guarantees and joint and several liability as well as providing of security; and
  - (c) If any limitation is no longer applicable as a mandatory provision under Norwegian law, that limitation will no longer apply to the security provided under this Deed.

#### **3** Service Entities

- 3.1 By its execution of this Deed, each of the Service Entities acknowledges the assignments of the Service Agreements in clause 2.
- 3.2 As continuing security for the payment and discharge by each Assignor of the Indebtedness and the observation and performance of our obligations under this Deed, each Service Entity, with full title guarantee, assigns to the Security Agent absolutely, subject to a provision for re-assignment on redemption, all rights and interests of every kind which each Service Entity now or at any time later has to, in or in connection with the Insurances and the Insurance Proceeds.
- 3.3 Each Service Entity that has assigned Insurance and Insurance Proceeds pursuant to this clause 3 agrees with the Security Agent that it will not (and will procure that each of its Affiliates, Subsidiaries and/or associated companies will not) take any action (or refrain from taking any action) in relation to any Insurances or Insurance Proceeds (or request any court or other authority to do so) which might adversely affect or interfere with the rights and powers of the Security Agent as assignee and sole loss payee of the Insurances.
- 3.4 Each Service Entity will give notice of its assignment of Insurances to such person or persons as the Security Agent may reasonably request.
- 3.5 The Service Entities hereby acknowledge and agree that the Service Agreements and payments to be made thereunder shall be subject to customary transfer pricing arrangements.

#### 4 Restrictions

- 4.1 Each Assignor or Related Party (as the case may be) will ensure that the restrictions contained in this clause 4 are complied with unless the Security Agent agrees to the contrary. For the avoidance of doubt, the restrictions contained in this clause 4 shall cease to apply to any Service Entity immediately upon one or more Replacement Service Entities providing (and fully replacing such existing Service Entity in its obligation to provide) the services provided to the Assignors by such Service Entity under the Service Agreements (such change, a **Replacement**).
- 4.2 Each Assignor and Related Party acknowledges and confirms that it has received a copy of the Finance Documents and is aware of the provisions therein.
- 4.3 Each Service Entity hereby undertakes that it shall not create or permit to subsist, any Encumbrance over all or any part of its assets (including but not limited to Insurances, Insurance Proceeds and any of the shares, equity or membership interests owned by such Service Entity) other than any Permitted Encumbrances.
- 4.4 Each Service Entity shall undertake that it shall not permit or suffer to exist any Encumbrance in the shares, equity or membership interests in such Service Entity other than Permitted Encumbrances.
- 4.5 Each Service Entity shall undertake that it shall not permit or suffer to exist the Disposal of any shares, equity or membership interests in such Service Entity unless (i) such sale is to Permitted Parent or one or more of its Subsidiaries or (ii) a Replacement of such Service Entity has occurred or occurs substantially concurrent therewith.
- 4.6 No Service Entity shall incur any Financial Indebtedness (other than intercompany loans).

#### 5 Perfection

#### **General action**

- 5.1 Each Assignor will, at its own expense, create all such Encumbrances, execute all such documents, effect all such registrations (whether at the Companies Registry, an asset registry or otherwise), deposit all such documents and do all such other things as the Security Agent may reasonably require from time to time in order to:
  - (a) ensure that the Security Agent has an effective first-ranking assignment by way of security over the Assigned Assets;
  - (b) ensure that any person that is the Permitted Parent or a Subsidiary of the Permitted Parent and which has an interest in the Insurances or Insurance Proceeds accedes to this Deed as a Related Party pursuant to an Accession Deed (Intra-Group Loan Assignment); and
  - (c) at any time during an Enforcement Time, facilitate the enforcement of the Encumbrance created by this Deed, the realisation of the Assigned Assets or the exercise of any Rights held by the Security Agent or any Receiver under or in connection with the Encumbrance created by this Deed.
- 5.2 Each Assignor undertakes to assign in favour of the Security Agent, as a first ranking security interest, any future Monetary Claim payable to the Assignor after the date of this Deed and which are required to be assigned pursuant to the terms of this Deed.
- 5.3 Where an Assignor or Service Entity has a Encumbrance (as defined in the PPSA) to the extent the law permits, each party waives its right to receive from the Security Agent any notice required under the PPSA (including a notice of a verification statement).

#### 6 Enforcement

#### Time for enforcement

6.1 The Security Agent may enforce the Encumbrance created by this Deed at any time which is an Enforcement Time.

#### Methods of enforcement

- 6.2 The Security Agent may enforce at any time which is an Enforcement Time all or any part of the Encumbrance created by this Deed by exercising any powers conferred on it by law or by this Deed and, in addition may:
  - (a) collect, recover and give a good discharge for any moneys or claims or Monetary Claims in respect of all or any of the Assigned Assets;
  - (b) exercise any and all ownership rights, including all creditor rights, in connection with the Monetary Claims as if it was the owner thereof, and instruct the Related Party to make payment directly to the Security Agent;
  - immediately sell or assign all or any of the Monetary Claims in such manner and upon such terms (by private or public sale) and for such consideration (whether in cash, securities or other assets) as is then agreed;
  - (d) take any other action in relation to the Monetary Claims as permitted by the Enforcement Act, the Mortgage Act or other applicable law;
  - (e) settle, refer to arbitration, compromise, forgive and arrange any claims, accounts, disputes, questions and demands with or by any person relating to all or any of the Assigned Assets;
  - (f) bring, prosecute, defend or abandon any action, suit or proceedings in relation to all or any of the Assigned Assets;
  - (g) do anything incidental or conducive to the exercise of its rights as assignee of all or any of the Assigned Assets; and/or
  - (h) appoint a Receiver of all or any of the Assigned Assets.
- 6.3 To the extent that the Encumbrance created by this Deed arises under a security financial collateral arrangement, the Security Agent may also enforce at any time which is an Enforcement Time it by giving written notice to the Assignor and/or Service Entity that it is appropriating those Assigned Assets which consist of financial collateral. On receipt of that notice by the Assignor and/or Service Entity, the Security Agent will automatically become the absolute owner of that financial collateral, and the Assignor and/or Service Entity will have no further interest in it. The value of the financial collateral will, as soon as practicable after it has been established, be applied in discharge of the equivalent amount of the Indebtedness in accordance with clause 7 (*Application of proceeds*). For this purpose, the Security Agent will value the financial collateral as follows:
  - (a) in the case of cash, by reference to its face value received by the Security Agent; and
  - (b) in the case of credit claims, by reference to the amount actually recovered by the Security Agent.

Expressions defined in the Financial Collateral Arrangements (No. 2) Regulations 2003 will have the same meanings in this clause 6.

6.4 A Receiver must be appointed by an instrument in writing at any time which is an Enforcement Time, and otherwise in accordance with the Insolvency Legislation.

EU-#558166716-v6

- 6.5 The appointment of a Receiver may be made subject to such limitations as are specified by the Security Agent in the appointment.
- 6.6 If more than one person is appointed as a Receiver, each person will have power to act independently of any other, except to the extent that the Security Agent may specify to the contrary in the appointment.
- 6.7 The Security Agent may remove or replace any Receiver.

#### **Powers on enforcement**

- 6.8 A Receiver will have the following powers in respect of the Assigned Assets:
  - (a) the powers given to an administrative receiver by the Insolvency Legislation;
  - (b) the powers given to a mortgagee or a receiver by the Law of Property Act 1925, but without the restrictions contained in section 103 of that Act; and
  - (c) the power to do, or omit to do, on behalf of the Assignors and/or Service Entity, anything which that Assignor and/or Service Entity itself could have done, or omitted to do, if the Assigned Assets were not the subject of an Encumbrance and that Assignor and/or Service Entity were not in insolvency proceedings.
- 6.9 The Security Agent will, if it enforces the Encumbrance created by this Deed itself, have the same powers as a Receiver in respect of the assets which are the subject of the enforcement.
- 6.10 Except to the extent provided by law, none of the powers described in this clause 6 will be affected by an Insolvency Event in relation to an Assignor and/or Service Entity.

#### Status and remuneration of Receiver

- 6.11 A Receiver will be the agent of the Assignors and/or Service Entities until otherwise required by applicable law. A Receiver will have no authority to act as agent for the Security Agent, even if the Receiver ceases to be the agent of the Assignors and/or Service Entities (or any of them) under any applicable law.
- 6.12 The Security Agent may from time to time determine the remuneration of any Receiver.

#### **Third parties**

- 6.13 A person dealing with the Security Agent or with a Receiver is entitled to assume, unless it has actual knowledge to the contrary, that:
  - (a) those persons have the power to do those things which they are purporting to do; and
  - (b) they are exercising their powers properly.

#### 7 Application of proceeds

- 7.1 All moneys received by the Security Agent or by a Receiver in the exercise of their rights under this Deed shall be applied in accordance with clause 12 of the Facility Agreement.
- 7.2 If the moneys applied in this way are not sufficient fully to pay and discharge the Indebtedness, the Assignors shall continue to be liable for the balance of the Indebtedness.

#### 8 Deferral and non-petitioning undertakings

8.1 Each Related Party, solely to the extent it is a payee of any Subordinated Liability and solely in the capacity of payee of any Subordinated Liability, undertakes with the Security Agent that,

notwithstanding any contrary term of any of the Subordinated Liabilities or any of the Finance Documents, it will not at any time without the prior written consent of the Security Agent directly or indirectly:

- make, demand or accept any payment or repayment (including without limitation by way of indemnity, reimbursement or contribution) of, have the benefit of, or share in any payment or composition in respect of, any of the Subordinated Liabilities except Permitted Payments;
- (b) create, take, accept, receive or permit to exist any Encumbrance to secure the payment and/or repayment (including without limitation by way of indemnity, reimbursement or contribution) of any of the Subordinated Liabilities;
- (c) effect any Disposal of any of the Subordinated Liabilities, unless to the Permitted Parent or a Subsidiary of Permitted Parent which is either a Related Party or becomes party to this Deed as a Related Party;
- (d) take any step to enforce any right which it may have under or in respect of any of the Subordinated Liabilities (by proceedings or otherwise);
- (e) take the benefit (in whole or in part and whether by way of subrogation or otherwise) of any guarantee to support the payment and/or repayment (including without limitation by way of indemnity, reimbursement or contribution) of any of the Subordinated Liabilities;
- (f) initiate or take any action which would result in an Insolvency Event;
- (g) claim or prove in any proceedings in connection to an Insolvency Event in relation to any Assignor (unless the Security Agent has failed to do so and such claim or proof is acknowledged to be subject to the subordination contained herein or otherwise directed by the Security Agent (in which case, such Assignor or Related Party shall act in accordance with such directions and shall procure that any resultant Distribution is made by the liquidator or any other person making the Distribution, to the Security Agent to the extent necessary to repay and discharge all the Facility Beneficiary Liabilities in full)); or
- (h) otherwise claim or prove as a creditor of any Security Party in competition with any Facility Beneficiary (it being agreed and understood that a claim or proof that is acknowledged to be subject to the subordination contained herein is not in competition with the any Finance Party).
- 8.2 Each Related Party, solely to the extent it is a payee of any Subordinated Liability, will, if so directed by the Security Agent, prove in any proceedings in connection with an Insolvency Event in relation to any Assignor for the whole or any part of any claim which it may have against such any Assignor and on terms that the benefit of such proof and of all moneys received by it in respect thereof shall be held on trust for the Finance Parties and shall be applied in accordance with clause 7 (*Application of Proceeds*).
- 8.3 Each Related Party, solely to the extent it is a payee of any Subordinated Liability, irrevocably authorises and directs the Security Agent to submit any proof and/or to instruct the relevant liquidator or other person to make Distributions in accordance with this clause 8.
- 8.4 Each Related Party, solely to the extent it is a payee of any Subordinated Liability, shall, if and whenever requested by the Security Agent (acting reasonably), notify the Security Agent of the amounts from time to time of the Subordinated Liabilities owing to it.
- 8.5 Each Assignor represents and warrants to the Security Agent that no Liabilities are owed by it to any Subsidiary of the Permitted Parent except the other Related Parties.
- 8.6 Each Assignor covenants to the Security Agent that if at any time any Liabilities are owed by it to any Subsidiary of the Permitted Parent (other than the Related Parties) and such Liability would be a Subordinated Liability if the payee thereof were a Related Party party hereto, then it shall

promptly procure that that other Subsidiary of the Permitted Parent accedes to this Deed as a Related Party pursuant to an Accession Deed (Intra-Group Loan Assignment).

8.7 Each Assignor irrevocably authorises the Security Agent to execute any Accession Deed (Intra-Group Loan Assignment) on its behalf.

8.8 In the event the Security Agent or any Finance Party takes enforcement action on either (a) the equity interests in any Assignor or (b) the Vessel and, in either case, subsequently (or concurrently therewith) Disposes of equity interests or shares in the Vessel to a person, each Related Party, in its capacity as payee of Subordinated Liabilities agrees to have a claim up to the proceeds of an arm's length Disposal of equity interests or any shares in the Vessel only to the extent of any proceeds of such Disposal remaining after applying such proceeds to repay the Indebtedness (and for the avoidance of doubt, such claims survive, subject to the terms of this Deed, until such arm's length Disposal occurs). For the avoidance of doubt, in the event there are no excess proceeds available pursuant to the foregoing, such Related Party's claims in respect of Subordinated Liabilities against each Assignor shall be released and discharged in full.

#### 9 Subordination

- 9.1 This clause 9.1 contains subordination terms applicable to Post-Closing Intercompany Loans. Upon and during an Event of Default that is continuing, (i) the claims of and amounts from time to time due and payable by any Assignor to any Related Party in respect of any Post-Closing Intercompany Loan shall be postponed and subordinated in all respects to the Indebtedness during the continuation of such Event of Default and (ii) the Assignor shall not be permitted to make and the Related Party shall not be permitted to receive any payment in respect of the Post-Closing Intercompany Loans (whether in cash, by set-off or otherwise (in the case of set-off, except to the extent that it is required to do so by any applicable law)) during the continuation of such Event of Default, in each case, other than the accrual of interest in kind (it being agreed and understood that all such amounts described in clauses (i) and (ii) shall be permitted to be paid (whether in cash, by set-off or otherwise) by the applicable Assignor and received by the applicable Related Party at any time that an Event of Default is not continuing and if such payment is made, the Assignors are deemed to have represented and warranted that the Minimum Liquidity Requirement is met immediately prior to, and immediately after, that payment being made).
- 9.2 This clause 9.2 contains subordination terms applicable to Pre-Closing Intercompany Loans. Upon and during an Event of Default that is continuing and/or during such times as dividends and other distributions to shareholders would not be permitted under clause 19.10 of the Common Terms Agreement, (i) the claims of and amounts from time to time due and payable by any Assignor to any Related Party in respect of any Pre-Closing Intercompany Loan shall be postponed and subordinated in all respects to the Indebtedness until such time as dividends or other distributions would be permitted under clause 19.10 of the Common Terms Agreement and/or during the continuation of such Event of Default and (ii) the Assignor shall not be permitted to make and the Related Party shall not be permitted to receive any payment in respect of the Pre-Closing Intercompany Loans (whether in cash, by set-off or otherwise (in the case of set-off, except to the extent that it is required to do so by any applicable law)) during the continuation of such Event of Default and/or until such time as dividends or other distributions would be permitted under clause 19.10 of the Common Terms Agreement, in each case, other than the accrual of interest in kind (it being agreed and understood that all such amounts described in clauses (i) and (ii) shall be permitted to be paid (whether in cash, by set-off or otherwise) by the applicable Assignor and received by the applicable Related Party at any time that dividends or other distributions would be permitted under clause 19.10 of the Common Terms Agreement and/or at any time that an Event of Default is not continuing, and if such payment is made, the Assignors are deemed to have represented and warranted that the Minimum Liquidity Requirement is met immediately prior to, and immediately after, that payment being made).
- 9.3 This clause 9.3 contains subordination terms applicable to Accrued Service Fees. Upon an Event of Default that is continuing, (i) the claims of and amounts from time to time due and payable by any Assignor to any Service Entity in respect of any Accrued Service Fee shall be postponed and subordinated in all respects to the Indebtedness during the continuation of such Event of Default and (ii) the Assignor shall not be permitted to make and the Related Party shall not be permitted

to receive any payment in respect of the Accrued Service Fees (whether in cash, by set-off or otherwise (in the case of set-off, except to the extent that it is required to do so by any applicable law)) during the continuation of such Event of Default, in each case, other than the accrual of interest in kind (it being agreed and understood that (a) all such amounts described in clauses (i) and (ii) shall be permitted to be paid (whether in cash, by set-off or otherwise) by the applicable Assignor and received by the applicable Related Party at any time that an Event of Default is not continuing and (b) Current Service Fees up to an amount not exceeding the Threshold Amount for each calendar month shall be permitted to be paid (whether in cash, by set-off or otherwise) by the applicable Assignor and received by the applicable to be paid (whether in cash, by set-off or otherwise) by the applicable for each calendar month shall be permitted to be paid (whether in cash, by set-off or otherwise) by the applicable Assignor and received by the applicable to be paid (whether in cash, by set-off or otherwise) by the applicable for each calendar month shall be permitted to be paid (whether in cash, by set-off or otherwise) by the applicable Assignor and received by the applicable Service Entity even during the continuation of an Event of Default).

9.4 This clause 9.4 contains subordination terms applicable to Service Fees. Upon an Acceleration Event that is continuing, and unless there is an Insolvency Event and an order from a competent court following that Insolvency Event expressly ordering otherwise, (i) the claims of and amounts from time to time due and payable by any Assignor to any Service Entity in respect of any Service Fees shall be postponed and subordinated in all respects to the Indebtedness during the continuation of such Acceleration Event and (ii) the Assignor shall not be permitted to make and the Related Party shall not be permitted to receive any payment in respect of the Service Fees (whether in cash, by set-off or otherwise (in the case of set-off, except to the extent that it is required to do so by any applicable law)) during the continuation of such Acceleration Event, in each case, other than the accrual of interest in kind (it being agreed and understood that all such amounts described in clauses (i) and (ii) shall be permitted to be paid (whether in cash, by set-off or otherwise) by the applicable Assignor and received by the applicable Related Party at any time that an Acceleration Event is not continuing, but subject always to the terms of clause 9.3.

9.5 This section 9.5 contains subordination terms applicable to FFTA Intercompany Loans. Upon and during an Event of Default that is continuing, (i) the claims of and amounts from time to time due and payable by any Assignor to any Related Party in respect of any FFTA Intercompany Loan shall be postponed and subordinated in all respects to the Indebtedness during the continuation of such Event of Default and (ii) the Assignor shall not be permitted to make and the Related Party shall not be permitted to receive any payment in respect of the FFTA Intercompany Loans (whether in cash, by set-off or otherwise (in the case of set-off, except to the extent that it is required to do so by any applicable law)) during the continuation of such Event of Default, in each case, other than the accrual of interest in kind (it being agreed and understood that all such amounts described in clauses (i) and (ii) shall be permitted to be paid (whether in cash, by set-off or otherwise) by the applicable Assignor and received by the applicable Related Party at any time that an Event of Default is not continuing).

#### 9.6 In the event of:

- (a) any payment, repayment or other Distribution being made to, or a right of set-off of the Subordinated Liabilities against any other Liabilities being exercised by, any Related Party contrary to the provisions of this Deed;
- (b) any Distribution being made by a liquidator or other person to any Related Party rather than to the Security Agent as required by clause 9; and/or
- (c) any Related Party being required to exercise rights of set-off of the Subordinated Liabilities against any other Liabilities under applicable law (as contemplated in clauses 9.1, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4 and/or 9.5); and/or
- (d) any Related Party receiving a payment pursuant to clauses 9.1 and/or 9.2 when the Minimum Liquidity Requirement is not in fact met,

that applicable Related Party shall forthwith pay to the Security Agent an amount equal to the payment, repayment or other Distribution so received by it up to an aggregate amount equal to the Facility Beneficiary Liabilities or, in the case of set-off, an amount equal to the amount set-off up to an aggregate amount equal to the Facility Beneficiary Liabilities and, until such payment to the Security Agent, that Related Party will hold such amounts on trust for the Security Agent and

any such amounts so paid to the Security Agent shall be applied in or toward discharge of the Facility Beneficiary Liabilities in accordance with clause 7 (*Application of Proceeds*).

9.7 To the extent and at such times as subject to subordination in accordance with the preceding clauses of this clause **Error! Reference source not found.**, the Liabilities rank in the following order:

- (a) first, the Facility Beneficiary Liabilities; and
- (b) second, the Subordinated Liabilities without any preference between them.

#### 10 General undertakings

- 10.1 Each Assignor and/or Service Entity will notify the Security Agent as soon as it becomes aware of any matter which might reasonably be expected to have a materially adverse effect on the Rights of the Security Agent under the Encumbrance created by this Deed. Those matters include a claim by any person to an interest in an Assigned Asset.
- 10.2 Each Assignor will provide to the Security Agent:
  - (a) such information about the Assigned Assets;
  - (b) such information about the extent to which it has complied with its obligations under this Deed; and
  - (c) copies of such documents which create, evidence or relate to the Assigned Assets,

as the Security Agent may from time to time reasonably request.

10.3 If an Assignor and/or Service Entity does not comply with its obligations under this Deed, the Security Agent may do so on that Assignor's behalf on such basis as the Security Agent may reasonably decide. That Assignor will indemnify the Security Agent on demand against the amount certified by the Security Agent to be the cost, loss or liability suffered by it as a result of doing so.

#### 11 Duration of the security

- 11.1 The obligations of each Assignor and/or Service Entity and/or Related Party under this Deed and the Encumbrance created by this Deed will continue until the Indebtedness have been irrevocably and unconditionally paid or discharged in full, regardless of any intermediate payment or discharge in whole or in part.
- 11.2 If any payment by an Assignor and/or Service Entity and/or Related Party or any other security provider or any release given by the Security Agent (whether in respect of the Indebtedness or any security for them or otherwise) is avoided or reduced as a result of insolvency or any similar event:
  - (a) the liability of that Assignor and/or Service Entity and/or Related Party under this Deed will continue as if the payment, release, avoidance or reduction had not occurred; and
  - (b) the Security Agent will be entitled to recover the value or amount of that security or payment from that Assignor and/or Service Entity and/or Related Party as if the payment, release, avoidance or reduction had not occurred.
- 11.3 Section 93 of the Law of Property Act 1925 will not apply to this Deed.

#### 12 Third party security protections

#### **Continuing obligations**

12.1 This Deed and the obligations of each Assignor and/or Service Entity and/or Related Party under this Deed shall extend to the ultimate balance owing by any Security Party in respect of the Indebtedness, regardless of any intermediate payment in whole or in part.

#### Reinstatement

12.2 If any discharge, release or arrangement (whether in respect of the obligations of any Security Party or any security for those obligations or otherwise) is made by a Finance Party in whole or in part on the faith of any payment, security or other disposition which is avoided or must be restored in an insolvency, liquidation, administration or otherwise, without limitation, then the liability of the Assignors and/or Service Entities and/or Related Parties under this Deed will continue or be reinstated as if the discharge, release or arrangement had not occurred.

#### Waiver of defences

- 12.3 The obligations of the Assignors and/or Service Entities and/or Related Parties under this Deed will not be affected by an act, omission, matter or thing which, but for this clause, would reduce, release or prejudice any of its obligations under this Deed (without limitation and whether or not known to it or to any Finance Party), including:
  - (a) any time, waiver or consent granted to, or composition with, any Security Party or any other person;
  - (b) the release of any Security Party or any other person;
  - (c) the taking, variation, compromise, exchange, renewal or release of, or refusal or neglect to perfect, take up or enforce, any rights against, or security over assets of, any Security Party or any other person or any non-presentation or non-observance of any formality or other requirement in respect of any instrument or any failure to realise the full value of any security;
  - (d) any incapacity or lack of power, authority or legal personality of or dissolution or change in the members or status of any Security Party or any other person;
  - (e) any amendment (however fundamental) or replacement of a Finance Document or any other document or security;
  - (f) any unenforceability, illegality or invalidity of any obligation of any person under any Finance Document or any other document or security; or
  - (g) any insolvency or similar proceedings.
- 12.4 The Assignor and any Service Entity hereby waives its rights pursuant to (and all principles derived from) all non-mandatory provisions of the FA Legislation, and agrees that they shall not apply to this Deed.

#### Immediate recourse

12.5 Each Assignor and/or Service Entity and/or Related Party waives any right it may have of first requiring any Finance Party (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) to proceed against or enforce any other rights or security or claim payment from any person before claiming from that Assignor and/or Service Entity and/or Related Party under this Deed. This waiver applies irrespective of any law or any provision of a Finance Document to the contrary.

#### Appropriations

- 12.6 Until the Indebtedness have been irrevocably and unconditionally discharged in full, the Security Agent or a Receiver may:
  - (a) refrain from applying or enforcing any other money, security or Rights held or received by it (or any trustee or agent on its behalf) in respect of the Indebtedness, or apply and enforce the same in the manner and order it thinks fit (whether against those amounts or otherwise) and no Assignor and/or Service Entity and/or Related Party will be entitled to the benefit of the same; and
  - (b) hold in an interest-bearing suspense account any money received from an Assignor and/or Service Entity and/or Related Party or on account of any Assignor's and/or Service Entity's and/or Related Party's liability under this Deed.
- 12.7 This Deed is in addition to and is not in any way prejudiced by any other Charged Property or guarantee now or subsequently held by any Finance Party.
- 12.8 Neither the Security Agent nor any Receiver shall be obliged to enquire about the nature or sufficiency of any payment received by it under this Deed or to take any action to enforce this Deed.
- 12.9 The Assignors shall remain liable to perform all their obligations in relation to the Assigned Assets and the Security Agent is not responsible for those obligations.

#### 13 Enforcement costs

The Assignors shall, jointly and severally and on demand by the Security Agent, pay (and indemnify the Security Agent and any Receiver against) all costs, expenses, liabilities or other amounts incurred by the Security Agent, any Finance Party or any Receiver in connection with:

- 13.1 the taking, holding, protection, enforcement or preservation of this Deed;
- 13.2 the exercise or purported exercise of any of the rights, powers, discretions and remedies vested in the Security Agent and each Receiver by this Deed or by law unless and to the extent that it was caused by its gross negligence or wilful misconduct;
- 13.3 any breach by an Assignor of this Deed; or
- 13.4 any amendment, waiver, consent or release of this Deed,

and pay any remuneration payable to any Receiver.

#### 14 Remedies

- 14.1 The Rights created by this Deed are in addition to any other Rights of the Finance Parties against the Assignors and/or Service Entities and/or Related Parties or any other security provider under any other documentation, the general law or otherwise. They will not merge with or limit those other Rights, and are not limited by them.
- 14.2 No failure by a Finance Party to exercise any Right under this Deed will operate as a waiver of that Right. Nor will a single or partial exercise of a Right by a Finance Party preclude its further exercise.
- 14.3 If, at any time, any provision of this Deed is or becomes illegal, invalid or unenforceable in any respect under any law of any jurisdiction, neither the legality, validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions nor the legality, validity or enforceability of that provision in any other respect or under the law of any other jurisdiction will be affected or impaired in any way.

#### 15 Power of attorney

15.1 Each Assignor and/or Service Entity and/or Related Party by way of security irrevocably appoints each of the Security Agent and any Receiver severally to be its attorney (with full powers of substitution) in its name and on its behalf to do all things which the attorney may consider necessary or desirable to enable it:

- to perform any action which that Assignor and/or Service Entity and/or Related Party is obliged to take under this Deed;
- (b) to exercise any of the rights, powers and authorities conferred on it by this Deed or by law; or
- (c) to record this Deed and any document executed pursuant to clause 5 (*Perfection*) in any court, public office or elsewhere.
- 15.2 The power of attorney in this clause 15 may only be exercised at an Enforcement Time but the exercise of such power shall be conclusive evidence of the Security Agent's or the Receiver's right to exercise it and no person dealing with the Security Agent or the Receiver shall need to enquire whether it is, or shall be affected by notice that it is not, an Enforcement Time. Each Assignor and/or Service Entity and/or Related Party ratifies and confirms whatever the attorney does or purports to do under clause 15.1.

#### 16 Other provisions

#### The Security Agent

16.1 The Security Agent may assign its rights under this Deed to any person appointed as Security Agent under the Facility Agreement.

#### Notices

16.2 Clause 20 (Notices) of the Facility Agreement shall apply to this Deed as if set out in full in this Deed, with each Assignor and/or Service Entity and/or Related Party being a Security Party.

#### Parallel Debt

- 16.3 Each Assignor and/or Service Entity hereby undertakes with the Security Agent to pay the Security Agent, as a creditor in its own right and not as a representative of the other Finance Parties, amounts equal to and in the currency of the amounts payable by that Assignor and/or Service Entity in respect of the Indebtedness as they may exist from time to time as and when the same become due, and that the Security Agent will have its own independent right to demand payment, repayment, discharge or performance by each Assignor of any Indebtedness owed by it. The payment undertaking of each Assignor to the Security Agent under this clause 16.3 is hereinafter referred to as **Parallel Debt**.
- 16.4 Each Assignor and/or Service Entity and the Security Agent acknowledges that:
  - each Parallel Debt constitutes an undertaking, obligation and liability of each Assignor and/or Service Entity to the Security Agent which is separate and independent from, and without prejudice to, the Indebtedness; and
  - (b) each Parallel Debt represents the Security Agent's own separate and independent claim (*eigen en zelfstandige vordering*) to receive payment of such Parallel Debt from the relevant Assignor and/or Service Entity.
- 16.5 For the avoidance of doubt, each Assignor and/or Service Entity and the Security Agent confirms that the claim of the Security Agent against the Assignors and/or Service Entities in respect of a Parallel Debt and the claims of any one or more of the Finance Parties against the relevant

Assignor in respect of the Indebtedness payable by that Assignor and/or Service Entity to those Finance Parties do not constitute common property (*gemeenschap*) within the meaning of article 3:166 of the Dutch Civil Code and that the provisions relating to common property shall not apply. If, however, it shall be held that such claim of the Security Agent and such claims of any one or more of the Finance Parties do constitute common property and the provisions relating to common property do apply, the Assignors and/or Service Entity, the Security Agent and the other Finance Parties agree that this Deed shall constitute the administration agreement (*beheersregeling*) within the meaning of article 3:168 of the Dutch Civil Code.

- 16.6 Any amount recovered by the Security Agent in payment of a Parallel Debt shall be applied in accordance with the terms of the Facility Agreement. Any payment, repayment, discharge or performance of any Secured Obligation to a Finance Party shall, to that extent, satisfy the corresponding Parallel Debt.
- 16.7 In the event of the appointment of a new Security Agent, the retiring Security Agent shall assign (*cederen*) to the successor Security Agent the obligations owed or to be owed to it pursuant to clauses 16.3 to and including 16.6 and this clause 16.7.

#### 17 Governing law and enforcement

- 17.1 This Deed and any non-contractual obligations connected with it are governed by English law.
- 17.2 For the benefit of the Security Agent and subject to clause 17.4 below, each Assignor and Related Party hereby irrevocably agrees that the courts of England are to have exclusive jurisdiction, and that no other court is to have jurisdiction, to:
  - (a) settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Deed (including any dispute regarding the existence, validity or termination of this Deed) (**Proceedings**); or
  - (b) grant interim remedies, or other provisional or protective relief.

Each Assignor and Related Party accordingly submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of England.

- 17.3 For the benefit of the Security Agent and subject to clause 17.4 below, the parties agree that the courts of England are the most appropriate and convenient courts to settle Proceedings and, accordingly, that they shall not argue to the contrary.
- 17.4 Notwithstanding clauses 17.2 and 17.3, each Assignor and Related Party hereby agrees that the Security Agent shall have the exclusive right, at its sole option and for its benefit, to bring Proceedings, including third party proceedings, against that Assignor or Related Party, as the case may be, or to apply for interim remedies, in connection with this Deed:
  - (a) in the competent courts of Oslo, Norway and/or Scotland; and/or
  - (b) concurrently in more than one jurisdiction,

and the obtaining by the Security Agent of judgment in one jurisdiction shall not prevent the Security Agent from bringing or continuing proceedings in any other jurisdiction, whether or not these shall be founded on the same cause of action.

- 17.5 Without prejudice to any other mode of service allowed under any relevant law, each Assignor and Related Party:
  - (a) irrevocably appoints the person named in Schedule 1 as its agent for service of process in relation to any proceedings before the English courts in connection with this Deed; and
  - (b) agrees that failure by the process agent to notify that Assignor or Related Party, as the case may be, of the process shall not invalidate the proceedings concerned.

If any person appointed as process agent for that Assignor or Related Party is unable for any reason to act as agent for service of process, that Assignor or Related Party must immediately (and in any event within ten days of such event taking place) appoint another agent on terms acceptable to the Security Agent. Failing this, the Security Agent may appoint another agent for this purpose.

This deed has been executed as a deed, and it has been delivered on the date stated at the beginning of this Deed.

18

17.6

## Schedule 1

#### <u>Assignors</u>

CLIPPER L.L.C.	
Country of formation:	Marshall Islands
Registered number:	962318
Registered address:	Trust Company Complex, Ajeltake Road, Ajeltake Island, Majuro, MH96960, Marshall Islands

#### SALAMANDER PRODUCTION (UK) LIMITED

Country of incorporation:	Scotland
Registered number:	SC656501
Registered office:	Altera House, Unit 3 Prospect Park Arnhall Business Park, Prospect Road, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ

#### ALTERA PRODUCTION UK LIMITED

Country of incorporation:	England
Registered number:	03142470
Registered office:	First Floor Templeback, 10 Temple Back, Bristol, United Kingdom, BS1 6FL

### **Related Parties**

Name	Address	Notice Details
	Petrojari Security Parties	
Altera Infrastructure FFTA Holdings Limited	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Prospect Road, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ Email:

Name	Address	Notice Details
		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
Altera Infrastructure FPSO Holdings Limited	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Prospect Road, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ
		Email:
		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
Altera Petrojarl I Serviços de Petróleo Ltda	Rua Engenheiro Fábio Goulart, nº 605, 302-E (parte), Ilha da Conceição, Niterói – RJ, CEP 24.050-090, Brazil	Rua Engenheiro Fábio Goulart, nº 605, 302-E (parte), Ilha da Conceição, Niterói – RJ, CEP 24.050-090, Brazil
		Email:
	T	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
Petrojarl I L.L.C.	Trust Company Complex, Ajeltake Road, Ajeltake Island, Majuro, MH96960, Marshall Islands	Brattørkaia 17A, 7010 Trondheim, Norway
		Email:
		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
Petrojarl I Production AS	Brattørkaia 17A, 7010 Trondheim, Norway	Brattørkaia 17A, 7010 Trondheim, Norway
		Email:
Dimensional I O	Trust Company Complex, Ajeltake Road, Ajeltake Island,	"Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
Piranema L.L.C.	Majuro, MH 96960, Marshall Islands	Brattørkaia 17A, 7010 Trondheim, Norway

Name	Address	Notice Details	
an mir munn að sá	งอุรกัญหาสารทางกันของการการการการการการการการการการการการการก	Email:	
		tum I t 10435 v	
		etten en seneral de la company de la comp	
		she options der of the option of the second	
	Knarr Security Parties		
ander an energy and the approximation of the angle of the providence of the state of the			
	a da anti-angla ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang an	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
	Altera Heuse Unit 2 Dressest	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park,	
Altera Infrastructure FFTA	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park,	Prospect Road, Westhill,	
Holdings Limited	Westhill, Aberdeen, United	Aberdeen, United Kingdom,	
	Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	AB32 6FJ	
		Email:	
and a second		an a	
		Attantions Transver Managar	
		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
n an			
	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park,	
Altera Infrastructure FPSO	Park, Arnhall Business Park,	Prospect Road, Westhill,	
Holdings Limited	Westhill, Aberdeen, United	Aberdeen, United Kingdom,	
	Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	AB32 6FJ	
		Email:	
		Attention: Trecours Monogon	
		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
Altera Knarr AS	Brattørkaia 17A, 7010	Brattørkaia 17A, 7010 Trondheim, Norway	
	Trondheim, Norway		
		Email:	
การแก้จะตัวจะการแก่งการเป็นประกาศหนึ่งไม่ไปไป การเป็นการเป็นการเป็นการเป็นการเป็นการเป็นไปไปไปไปไป การเป็นการเ			
		Attention: Treasury Manager;	
Golar-Nor (UK) Limited	First Floor Templeback, 10 Temple Back, Bristol, United	Legal Counsel	
Solar-Nor (ON) cittileo	Kingdom, BS1 6FL	Alton Louis Linit 2 Desenset	
		Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park,	
9997/00/2019/00/2019/00/2019/2019/2019/2019/	27		
#558166716-v6			

Address Notice Details Name Prospect Road, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ Email: Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel Trust Company Complex, Brattørkaia 17A, 7010 Ajeltake Road, Ajeltake Island, Knarr L.L.C. Trondheim, Norway Majuro, MH 96960, Marshall Islands Email: **Gina Krog Security Parties** Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel Badehusgata 37, Badehusgata 37, 4014 Stavanger, Gina Krog II AS 4014 Stavanger, Norway Norway Email: Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Prospect Road, Westhill, Altera Infrastructure FFTA Aberdeen, United Kingdom, Holdings Limited Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ AB32 6FJ Email: Attention: Treasury Manager; Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Legal Counsel Altera Infrastructure FSO Park, Arnhall Business Park, Holdings Limited Westhill, Aberdeen, United Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Kingdom, AB32 6FJ Park, Arnhall Business Park, Prospect Road, Westhill,

Name	Address	Notice Details
		Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ
		Email:
		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
	Badehusgata 37,	Badehusgata 37,
Gina Krog AS	4014 Stavanger,	4014 Stavanger, Norway
	Norway	Email:
		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
Gina Krog Offshore Pte. Ltd.	9 Battery Road, #15-101 MYP	Badehusgata 37,
(a company with UEN no.	Centre, Singapore 049910	4014 Stavanger, Norway
201528894D)		Email:
		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
Piranema L.L.C.	Trust Company Complex, Ajeltake Road, Ajeltake Island, Majura, MH 06060, Mamball	Brattørkaia 17A, 7010 Trondheim, Norway
	Majuro, MH 96960, Marshall Islands	Email:
		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
Petrojarl I L.L.C.	Trust Company Complex, Ajeltake Road, Ajeltake Island, Majura MH96960, Marshall	Brattørkaia 17A, 7010 Trondheim, Norway
	Majuro, MH96960, Marshall Islands	Email:

EU-#558166716-v6

Name	Address	Notice Details
	··.	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
Altera Infrastructure FFTA Holdings Limited	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Prospect Road, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ
		Email:
		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
Altera Infrastructure FSO Holdings Limited	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Prospect Road, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ
		Email:
		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
Altera Production UK Limited	First Floor Templeback, 10 Temple Back, Bristol, United Kingdom, BS1 6FL	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Prospect Road, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Email:
		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
Clipper L.L.C.	Trust Company Complex, Ajeltake Road, Ajeltake Island, Majuro Marshall Islands MH-96960	Badehusgata 37, 4014 Stavanger, Norway Email:

Name	Address	Notice Details	· · ·
Salamander Production (UK) Limited	Altera House, Unit 3 Prospect Park Arnhall Business Park, Prospect Road, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	Altera House, Unit 3 Prospect Park Arnhall Business Park, Prospect Road, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	
Altera Infrastructure Services Pte. Ltd	9 Battery Road #15-101 MYP	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel 9 Battery Road #15-101 MYP	۰ ۱۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰ ۱۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰ ۱۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰ ۲
(a company with UEN no. 201530522R)	Centre Singapore 049910	Centre Singapore 049910 Email:	
Itera Infrastructure Production AS	Brattørkaia 17A. 7010 Trondheim, Norway	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
		Brattørkaia 17A, 7010 Trondheim, Norway Email:	
	4xALP Facility Obligors		
Altera Infrastructure FFTA Holdings Limited	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Westhill, Aberdeen, United	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Prospect Road, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom,	
rioidings Linnited	Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	Aberdeen, Onited Kingdom, AB32 6FJ Email:	
ALP Keeper B.V. (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of	Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	

Name     Address     Notice Details       Commerce under number 61594563)     Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Roterdam, The Netherlands       ALP Defender B.V. (registered with trade register of the Duckh Chamber of Commerce under number 61594679)     Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Roterdam, The Netherlands       ALP Striker B.V. (registered with trade register of the Duckh Chamber of Commerce under number 61594679)     Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Roterdam, The Netherlands       ALP Striker B.V. (registered with trade register of the Duckh Chamber of Commerce under number 61606642)     Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Roterdam, The Netherlands       ALP Striker B.V. (registered with trade register of the Duckh Chamber of Commerce under number 61606642)     Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Roterdam, The Netherlands       ALP Sweeper B.V. (registered with trade register of the Duckh Chamber of Commerce under number 61594644)     Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Roterdam, The Netherlands       ALP Maritime Services B.V. (registered with trade register of the Duckh Chamber of Commerce under number 61594644)     Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Roterdam, The Netherlands       ALP Maritime Services B.V. (registered with trade register of the Duckh Chamber of Commerce under number 20165547)     Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Roterdam, The Netherlands					
61594563)       Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP         ALP Defender B.V.       Masstoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP         (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 61594679)       Masstoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP         ALP Striker B.V.       Masstoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP         Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Email:         ALP Striker B.V.       Masstoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP         Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Email:         ALP Striker B.V.       Masstoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP         Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Email:         ALP Striker B.V.       Masstoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP         Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Email:         Attention: Treasury Manager, Legal Counsel       Masstoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP         Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Email:         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Masstoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP         Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Email:         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Masstoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP         Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Email:         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Masstoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP         Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Email:         <		Name	Address	Notice Details	
ALP Defender B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Attention: Treasury Manager;         (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 61594679)       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         ALP Striker B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Kiterdam, The Netherlands       Ernait:       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         ALP Striker B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 61606642)       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Kiterdam, The Netherlands       Ernait:       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Kiterdam, The Netherlands       Ernait:       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Mithelminakade 95, 3072 AP,       Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Ernait:       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Kiterdam, The Netherlands       Ernait:       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Kiterdam, The Netherlands       Ernaithelminakade 95, 3072 AP,       Rotterdam, Th		-		Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	
ALP Defender B.V.       Image: Consel       Legal Counsel         (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 61594679)       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands         ALP Striker B.V.       (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 61606642)       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         Maastoren diterdam, The Netherlands       Email:       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotte	1			Email:	ang tang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang
ALP Defender B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         (registered with trade register       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP         Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Email:         ALP Striker B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         (registered with trade register       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         of the Dutch Chamber of       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         (registered with trade register       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         of the Dutch Chamber of       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Commerce under number       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         81606642)       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         (registered with trade register       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         of the Dutch Chamber of       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Commerce under number       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         of the Dutch Chamber of       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Commerce under number       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         61594644)       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Rotterdam, The Netherlands         Email:       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Rotterdam, The Neth					
(registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 61594679)       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands         ALP Striker B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, 61594679)       Maastoren, 40th Floor, 8000000000000000000000000000000000000					
(registered with rade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 61594679)       Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands         ALP Striker B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Striker B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Striker B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         Maastoren umber of Commerce under number       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, T	n Line Cheng		Maastoren, 40th Floor,		
61594679)       Email:         ALP Striker B.V.       (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 61606642)       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         Masstoren 61594644)       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands		of the Dutch Chamber of	Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP		
ALP Striker B.V.       Legal Counsel         (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of E066642)       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands				Email:	
ALP Striker B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands					
(registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 61606642)Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The NetherlandsMaastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The NetherlandsALP Sweeper B.V. (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 61594644)Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The NetherlandsAttention: Treasury Manager; Legal CounselALP Sweeper B.V. (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 61594644)Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The NetherlandsAttention: Treasury Manager; Legal CounselALP Maritime Services B.V. (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 61594644)Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The NetherlandsAttention: Treasury Manager; Legal CounselALP Maritime Services B.V. (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 204656410Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The NetherlandsAttention: Treasury Manager; Legal CounselMaastoren, duth Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The NetherlandsAttention: Treasury Manager; Legal CounselMaastoren, under of Commerce under number Outch Chamber of Commerce under numberMaastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands		Al P Striker B V	an tanàna mangkaonin' amin' amin' Ny faritr'o paositra dia mandri amin' am		
ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 61594644)       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor, 		(registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of	Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	
ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         (registered with trade register       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         of the Dutch Chamber of       Commerce under number       Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Email:         61594644)       Email:       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         (registered with trade register       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Vilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren,         Multer Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Vilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Vilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Vilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Vilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Vilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Vilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Maastoren, 40th Floor,		61606642)	الله. 1933 - محمد المحمد المحمد 1934 - محمد المحمد ا	Email:	
ALP Sweeper B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         (registered with trade register       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         of the Dutch Chamber of       Commerce under number       Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Email:         61594644)       Email:       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         (registered with trade register       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren,         Muse Services B.V.       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Vilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Vilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Vilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Maastoren, 40th Floor,       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Vilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Vilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Maastoren, 40th Floor,         Vilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Maastoren, 40th Floor,					
(registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 61594644)Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The NetherlandsWilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The NetherlandsALP Maritime Services B.V. (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under numberMaastoren, 40th Floor, 		ALP Sweeper B.V.			
61594644)       ALP Maritime Services B.V.         (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands         20165547)       Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel			Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	
ALP Maritime Services B.V.       Legal Counsel         (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP       Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP         20165547)       Rotterdam, The Netherlands       Rotterdam, The Netherlands				Email: ••	
(registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 20165547) Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands		ALP Maritime Services B.V.			
20165547		(registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of	Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	
	anta an Taona Taona			Email:	

	Name	Address	Notice Details	
	ALP Maritime Group B.V.		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
	(registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number	Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	
	61582026)		Email:	
••••••				
	ALP Maritime Holding B.V.		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
	(registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number	Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	
	62039385)		Email:	
		6xALP Security Parties		
	ALP Centre B.V.		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
	(registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of	Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	
	Commerce under number 62040103)		Email:	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		· ·	
			Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
	ALP Forward B.V. (registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of	Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	
	Commerce under number 62039857)		Email:	
	· ··			
· · · · · · · .	ALP Guard B.V.	Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
	(registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of	Rotterdam, The Netherlands		

Name	Address	Notice Details	•
Commerce under number 62039725)		Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	· · · ·
		and and a second s	
			· ·
a anti-array (1997) 1995 - Angel States, 1997 1997 - Angel States, 1997 - Angel States, 1997 - Angel States, 1997		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	· · · · · ·
ALP Ace B.V.	Maastoren, 40th Floor,	Maastoren, 40th Floor	
(registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of	Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	
Commerce under number 62040278)	an an Articles - Articles - A	tana <b>Email</b> : A second and a	
		Attention: Treasury Manager;	
ALP Ippon B.V.		Legal Counsel	
(registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of	Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	
Commerce under number 62040391)		е. <b>Émail:</b>	
	an in an ann an t-airte ann an tha ann an tha ann an t-airte an t-airte an t-airte an t-airte an t-airte an t-a	Attention: Treasury Manager;	
ALP Maritime Services B.V.	an a	Legal Counsel	
(registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of	Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	
Commerce under number 20165547)		Email:	. ·
ALP Maritime Group B.V.		Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
(registered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of	Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	· · ·
Commerce under number	Rotterdam, The Netherlands	Email:	

(re	Name LP Ocean Towage Holding B.V. egistered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 62036106). ALP Winger B.V. egistered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 62039563)	Address Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	Notice Details          Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         Maastoren, 40th Floor         Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP         Rotterdam, The Netherlands         Email:         Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel         Maastoren, 40th Floor         Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	
(re	B.V. egistered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 62036106). ALP Winger B.V. egistered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number	Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	Legal Counsel Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands Email: Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	
	ALP Winger B.V. egistered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number	Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	Legal Counsel Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	
	egistered with trade register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number	Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	Legal Counsel Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	
	of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number	Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP	
	02000000		Rotterdam, The Netherlands Email:	
	Altera Infrastructure FFTA Holdings Limited	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Prospect Road, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	
			Email:	
		Arendal Spirit Security Parties		
			Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
A Constant A Cons	Itera Infrastructure Arendal Holdings Limited	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Prospect Road, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	
			Email:	
		35	·	

	Name	Address	Notice Details	
			Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
	Altera Infrastructure FFTA Holdings Limited	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park, Prospect Road, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	
			Email:	
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
		Badehusgata 37,	Badehusgata 37,	
	Altera Infrastructure Norway AS	4014 Stavanger,	4014 Stavanger, Norway	
		Norway	en e	
		.**	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
		Badehusgata 37,	Badehusgata 37,	
	Arendal Spirit AS	4014 Stavanger,	4014 Stavanger, Norway	
		Norway	Email:	
	nieisibhrannan an a			
			Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
	·	Trust Company Complex, Ajeltake Road, Ajeltake Island,	Badehusgata 37,	
e 2011 ale de la tra 2012 - Calendaria de la tra 2012 - Calendaria de la tra	Arendal Spirit L.L.C.	Majuro, MH 96960, Marshall Islands	4014 Stavanger, Norway	
			Email:	
	Arendal Spirit UK Limited	Altera House, Unit 3 Prospect Park Arnhall Business Park,	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	

EU-#558166716-v6

1999 Wernersteinen generationen som

Name	Address	Notice Details
	Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	Prospect Road, Westhill, Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ
		Email:
Name	Address	Notice Details
ALP Maritime Contractors B.V. (registered with trade register	Maastoren, 40th Floor, Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce under number 54064783)		Maastoren, 40th Floor Wilhelminakade 95, 3072 AP Rotterdam, The Netherlands
		Email:
Altera Al Rayyan L.L.C.	Trust Company Complex, Ajeltake Road, Ajeltake Island, Majuro, MH 96960, Marshall	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
	Islands	Badehusgata 37 4014 Stavanger, Norway
		Email:
Altera Infrastructure Crewing AS	Badehusgata 37, 4014 Stavanger,	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
	Norway	Badehusgata 37
		4014 Stavanger, Norway
		Email
Altera Infrastructure Production (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.	9 Battery Road, #15-101 MYP Centre, Singapore 049910	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
(a company with UEN no. 201832213N)		9 Battery Road #15-101 MYP Centre Singapore 049910

Name	Address	Notice Details	
		Email:	
			a ang sa
		······································	
Altera Infrastructure Production Crew AS	Brattørkaia 17A. 7010 Trondheim, Norway	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
		Brattørkaia 17A, 7010	
		Trondheim, Norway	e e <sup>nt</sup> ree
		Email:	in energy States and
······································		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Altera Operations Australia Pty Ltd	West Perth, W.A. 6005,	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
	Australia	Office 33, 45 Ventnor Avenue,	
		West Perth, W.A. 6005,	
		Australia	
		Email:	an an tara tara tara tara tara tara tara
Altera Piranema Serviços de	Rua Engenheiro Fábio Goulart,	Attention: Treasury Manager;	
Petróleo Ltda	nº 605, 302-E (parte), Ilha da	Legal Counsel	an tha an
	Conceição, Niterói - RJ	Avenida Almirante Barroso, nº	
		81, 25º andar (sala 2501),	ي بين . و بين الله
		Centro, Rio de Janeiro	
		Email:	
		A 44 1'	
Altera Voyageur Production Limited	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park,	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel	
	Westhill, Aberdeen, United		
	Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	Altera House Unit 3 Prospect Park, Arnhall Business Park,	an ta char An ta char
		Prospect Road, Westhill,	
		Aberdeen, United Kingdom, AB32 6FJ	
		Email:	

Name	Address	Notice Details
Piranema Production AS	Brattørkaia 17A. 7010 Trondheim, Norway	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel
		Brattørkaia 17A, 7010 Trondheim, Norway Email:
Voyageur L.L.C.	Trust Company Complex, Ajeltake Road, Ajeltake Island, Majuro, MH 96960, Marshall Islands	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel Brattørkaia 17A, 7010 Trondheim, Norway Email:
Altera Infrastructure (Philippines) Inc.	7F CYA Land & Properties BLDG, 110 Thailand St. (Formerly Rada St) Legaspi Vill., Makati	Attention: Treasury Manager; Legal Counsel 7F CYA Land & Properties BLDG, 110 Thailand St. (Formerly Rada St) Legaspi Vill., Makati Email:

Process agent	
Name:	WFW Legal Service
Country of incorporation:	England
Registered office:	15 Appold Str
•••	30

s Limited reet, London EC2A 2HB

#### Schedule 2 Form of Accession Deed (Intra-Group Loan Assignment)

THIS ASSIGNMENT ACCESSION DEED is dated [•] and is made between:

- [\*], a company incorporated under the laws of [\*], whose registered office is at [\*], with company registration number [\*] (the [Additional Assignor][Additional Related Party]); and
- (2) [ ] acting in its capacity as facility agent and Security Agent for the Facility Lenders (the Security Agent).

THIS DEED WITNESSES AND IT IS HEREBY AGREED as follows:

#### 1 Definitions

In this Deed, terms defined in the Assignment (whether expressly or by reference to another document or agreement or otherwise) shall, unless otherwise defined in this Deed or the context otherwise requires, have the same meanings when used in this Deed, and:

Assignment means the intra-group loan assignment dated [...] 2023 between (among others) Clipper L.L.C. and the Security Agent as amended, supplemented, extended, restated, modified, novated or replaced.

#### 2 Obligations of the [Additional Assignor][Additional Related Party]

- 2.1 For the benefit of all of the other parties to the Assignment, the [Additional Assignor][Additional Related Party] confirms that, as from [date] it agrees to be party to the Assignment as [an Assignor][a Related Party][a Service Entity] undertakes to perform all the obligations expressed in the Assignment to be assumed by [an Assignor][a Related Party][a Service Entity] and agrees that it shall be bound by all the provisions of the Assignment, as if it had been an original party to the Assignment as [an Assignment as [an Assignment as [an Assignment]][a Related Party][a Service Entity] and agrees that it shall be bound by all the provisions of the Assignment, as if it had been an original party to the Assignment as [an Assignor][a Related Party] [a Service Entity].
- 2.2 [reserved].
- 2.3 [reserved].

#### 3 Assignment

- 3.1 The assignment by the [Additional Assignor][Additional Related Party] contained in this [clause 2][clause 3]is given to the Security Agent as facility agent and Security Agent for the Facility Lenders, secures the payment and discharge of the Indebtedness and is given with full title guarantee.
- 3.2 The [Additional Assignor] [Additional Related Party] assigns absolutely and unconditionally all of the Rights which it now has and all of the Rights which it obtains at any time in the future under or in respect of the [Assignor Assets and Service Agreements][Insurances and Insurance Proceeds].

#### 4 Notice

- 4.1 [reserved].
- 4.2 As at the date hereof, the Additional Assignor hereby provides a notice to each other Assignor that is an obligor of those Assigned Assets on the same terms as set out in the Assignment.

#### 5 Power of attorney

The [Additional Assignor][Additional Related Party] by way of security irrevocably appoints each of the Security Agent and any Receiver severally to be its attorneys (with full powers of substitution) in its name and on its behalf for all purposes referred to in, and on the terms of, clause 15 (*Power of attorney*) of the Assignment.

#### 6 Governing law

This Deed and any non-contractual obligations in connection with it are governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law.

This deed has been executed as a deed, and it has been delivered on the date stated at the beginning of this Deed.

#### [ADDITIONAL ASSIGNOR][ADDITIONAL RELATED PARTY]

SIGNED, SEALED and DELIVERED	)
as a DEED by	)
as	)
for and on behalf of	)
[ <b>②</b> ]	)
in the presence of:	)

Name of witness:

Address of witness:

#### SECURITY AGENT

#### EXECUTED as a DEED for and on behalf of [ ] by as in the presence of:

Name of witness:

Address of witness:

EU-#558166716-v6

)

)

#### SIGNATORIES

42

)

)

)

)

#### SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED

by DAND MERROR

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of D

SNB BANK ASA, NEW YORK BRANCH

Name of witness: Repecta Marbardale.

Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside

nortonrosefulbright.com

London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom

Address of witness: NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT

in the presence of:



SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED by as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of ) **Ella Vries** Attorney-in-Fact **ALTERA INFRASTRUCTURE FFTA** HOLDINGS LIMITED } in the presence of: ) Name of witness: Rebecca Martinelale Address of witness: **NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT** Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED by ) as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of ) **ALTERA INFRASTRUCTURE FPSO** Mia Langston ) Attorney-in-fact **HOLDINGS LIMITED** ) in the presence of: ) Name of witness: Rebecca Marndolle. **NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT** Address of witness: Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com 43

by .

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

#### ALTERA INFRASTRUCTURE FSO

#### **HOLDINGS LIMITED**

in the presence of:

Name of witness: Rebecca Martindall

Address of witness:

**NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT** Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

)

1

1

)

44

)

)

)

)

ì

Zsofia Bori

Attorney-in-fact

by Attorney-in-Fact

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

SALAMANDER PRODUCTION (UK) LIMITED

in the presence of:



Name of witness: Repercontracture

Address of witness:

**Norton Rose Fulbright** Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AO United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED by as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of ALTERA INFRASTRUCTURE ARENDAL

#### HOLDINGS LIMITED

in the presence of:

 Name of witness:
 Reference
 Markudalle

 Address of witness:
 Norton Rose Fulbright LLP

3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

nortonrosefulbright.com

SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

ARENDAL SPIRIT UK LIMITED

in the presence of:

by

Matthew Buxton Attorney-in-fact

Matthew Buxton ....Attorney-in-fact

Name of witness: Rebeard Maranolale.

Address of witness:

**NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT** Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More Landon Riverside

London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

45

**EXECUTED** as a **DEED** ) for and on behalf of ) ALTERA PETROJARL I SERVIÇOS DE ) Mia Langston Attorney-in-fact PETRÓLEO LTDA ) by its duly authorised attorney-in-fact ) in the presence of: )

#### Attorney-in-Fact



Witness Name:

Address:

Witness Name: Repered Martindale

Address:

#### **NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT** Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

Occupation:

46

Occupation: Trance Soucitor

# NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT

Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

Simeon Pavloy Trainee Solicitor

	SIGNED and DELIVE	RED as a DEED				
	PETROJARL I L.L.C.					
	By:					
n de ser Ser	Name: Mia I		na forga a geografia Menoria. Na esta	gan an gant (at	a ser ses altra atlana. References atlantes	
		angston ney-in-fact				
	Title:	icy				
						میدونی کارمانون می از آنان می این مربقات این می میران این کاران این
	in the presence of:	)				
•						
an. Stan		an an trainin 1910 1910 - Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna An		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	•••••••• 	
		*****				artis e a substantis de la composición de la composición de la composición de la composición de la composición La composición de la c
	Name of witness: ICe	logoo Ala	1	* .		
۰.	Address of witness:		SE FULBRIGHT			
		Norton Rose F 3 More Londo		.***		
			AQ United Kingdor	Υ). Υ)		
. * `		nortonrosefulb				
	SIGNED and DELIVE	RED as a DEED				
		n ar fann fan a'r a'r a'r a'r an ann fann fan fan . '				
	PIRANEMA L.L.C.					را می مرکز این
• •						
د . معالیتین	By:		a straight f	en Line and Line and Line Line and Line	and Anna an Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna Anna A	
	Name: Patric	k Smith				
	Title: Attorne	ey-in-Fact				
	1100.	•			n de la composition de la comp	
	in the presence of:				tang series and series ag	
	in the presence of.	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ار کی معلق ہے۔ جانب المحمد المحمد المیں ک		an teorem ante a series Ante de la teorem a teorem a series	
	n Marina da Santa da Sa					
					••••	
			an Tain Tain			
		********				
	Name of witness:	becan M	artindal	L		
n de la composition de la composition	Address of witness:		a terra de la companya de la company			
		<b>NORTON ROS</b> Norton Rose Fu	6 GH H PP			
		Norton Rose Fu	Ibright LI P			
		nortonrosefulbri	Aller contractions			
			a.urcoll			
			47			
14 A. 17 (1	ELL#558166716.v6	and the second spectrum states of the second	<ul> <li>Second and the second states</li> </ul>		and share the second second second second	والمحافية المراجع المراجع والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والمحافظ والم

,我们就是我的问题,你们还能是我们的你的,你不是我们的你们的你们,你们还是我们的你的你?""你们的你们,你不是我们的你?"他说道:"你们你我们能是我们的你,你们还
IGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED
NARR L.L.C.
die besoekte stere state stere die eerste kerste bekende die bester te die teerste eerste eerste die beleg. Die state state die state geboerte die state die die die die state die state geboerte state eerste eerste eerst
$m{y}_{m{z}}$
ame: Mia Langston
tle: Attorney-in-fact
the presence of: )
ame of witness: Repecca Marrialale.
ddress of witness:
Norton Rose Fulbright LLP
FTA Obligors
IGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED
LIPPE <mark>R L.L.C.</mark>
y:
ame: Patrick Smith
itle: Attorney-in-Fact
the presence of:
ame of witness: Rebeaca Martinobale
ddress of witness: Norton ROSE FULBRIGHT
a second and the second of the
e l'internet de la constant y avvie Lonnon Riverauta de la constante de la constant de l'internet de la constant de
nortonrosefulbright.com
,我们就是你们的你们,你们就是你们的你们,你们们的你们的你们,你们就是你们的你们,你们就是你们的你们,你们们就是你们的你们,你们们们就是你们的你们,你们就能能能能
Ki B) Ni Ti in A( S) C B) N Ti in

	د. به این میکند و میکند و میکند و میکند و میکند و میکند. به و میکند و میکند و میکند و میکند و میکند و میکند و میکند.				ار کار میں میں کر ان ایک بری کا کار اور اور ایک میں کار ایک میں کار میں کا کا میں ایک میں کار میں کا کا کار میں اور اور ایک میں کار میں کا کا میں کار میں کا کا میں کا کا کا ک
a de la presente Angle	SIGNED and DELIVER				
		LV QƏ Q VLLV		an ann an tha an Anna an Anna. An Anna	
	ARENDAL SPIRIT L.L.	C.			
	· .				
al an	Ву:	····			
	Name: Motthey	v Buxton			a Alasia Alasia
	AHATAA	y-in-fact		н н.	
	Title: Attorney	*			
a na parta na artitua. Tata	in the presence of:	)	an a	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
		· .		·	
			•••••		
		* # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # #			a de la Stanca Maria de Carlos Altra de Carlos de Carlos
	Name of witness:	and Montar	lala		
	Address of witness:	Norton Rose Fulbrick	Mart an a		
		Norton Rose Fulbright I 3 More London B:	NGHT 1 D		
		3 More London Riversic	le		
		London SE1 2AQ Unite nortonrosefulbright.com			
an an an an Araba An Araba an Araba An Araba		COM ULCOM			
n transforma Antonia antonia anto					
				• •	
				<i></i>	
	· · · · ·			······ . ·	
	ten en e			and a second second Second second	
					المراجع المراجع المراجع المراجع
			a ser e se a se a se a se a se a se a se		
		a da serie de la companya de la comp Na companya de la comp	e Na series de la companya de la comp Na series de la companya de la compa		المبير المراجع ويستعر أن المحافظة. المحافظة المحافظة ويحتر ويتحافظ المحافظة المحافظة المحافظة المحافظة المحافظة المحافظة المحافظة المحافظة المحافظ
			49		
	EU-#558166716-v6				

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

#### PETROJARL I PRODUCTION AS

in the presence of:

by

Name of witness: Relaccol Martinet Address of witness:

Marandale

)

)

)

)

)

)

Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED

by

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

#### **ALTERA KNARR AS**



Mia Langston Attorney-in-fact

Mia Langston

Attorney-in-fact

in the presence of:

Name of witness: Cobecca Martindall Address of witness:

**NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT** Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

SIGNED and DELIVE	RED as a DEED )	
by		Zsofia Bori Attorney-in-fact
as the duly authorise	d attorney-in-fact of )	
GINA KROG II AS (p	ending name change )	
from NFH 221042 AS	, to be registered with the )	
Norwegian Register o	of Business Enterprises)	
in the presence of:	$ \frac{1}{2} \left\{ \frac{1}{2} $	
ran 1995 - Alian Santaran Santaran 1996 - Santaran Santaran Santaran		n en en en la seconda de la En esta de la seconda de la En esta de la seconda de la
tin and an and a second se		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		a series and a series of the series of th A series of the series of th A series of the series of th
Name of witness:	elegoca Marandale.	
Address of witness:	NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT	
		الا المربق المراجع المربق المربق مربق المربق ال المربق المربق
	London SE1 2AO United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com	
	a tanàn 1996 - Angla Santa, amin'ny taona 2008 1996 - Angla Santa, amin'ny taona 2008–2014. Ilay kaominina dia kaominina	
SIGNED and DELIVE	RED as a DEED )	
by	and the second	Zsofia Bori Attorney-in-fact
as the duly authorised	d attorney-in-fact of )	
GINA KROG AS		
in the presence of:	a sendera da la construcción de la Construcción de la construcción de	
• • • • • • • •		
Name of witness:	ebecca Merandale	
Address of witness:	NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT	
	3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com	
an an agus an guiltean at ag faise an		

SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED ) by ) as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of ) **ARENDAL SPIRIT AS** ) in the presence of: ) Matthew Buxton Attorney-in-fact ......... Name of witness: Rebecca Marchalle Norton Rose FULBRIGHT Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com 52 EU-#558166716-v6

SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED       )       Zsolia Bof         by       )       Attorney-infact of         ALTERA INFRASTRUCTURE CREWING AS       )       )         In the presence of:       )         Address of witness:       MORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT Norion Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London SET 12AQ United Kingdom         by       )         as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of         )       )         mame of witness:         Name of witness:         MALTERA         Mame of witness:         Address of witness:         Name of witness:         Name of witness:         Name of witness:         Norton Rose FullaRicht         Nor					
Zsofia Bon         as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of         ALTERA INFRASTRUCTURE CREWING AS         in the presence of:         )         Name of witness:         Role Oca         Martiness:         Role Oca         Martiness:         Role Oca         Martiness:         Role Oca         Martiness:         Role Oca         More London         Riverside         London SE1 2AO United Kingdom         by         )         as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of         GOLAR-NOR (UK) LIMITED         in the presence of:         )         Mare of witness:         Robust         More London Riverside         London SE1 2AO United Kingdom         By         )         (UK) LIMITED         )         Mare of witness:         Robust         Mare of witness:         Robust         More London Riverside         London Riverside         London SE1 2AO Markhodale.         Address of witness:         Rorton Rose Fulbright LLP         3 Mor	SIGNED and DELIV	ERED as a DEED	)		
as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of ) Attorney-in ALTERA INFRASTRUCTURE CREWING AS ) in the presence of: ) Name of witness: Cobecoa MacAndala . Address of witness: More and Angel angel and Angel an	by		)		Zeofia BOR
in the presence of: Name of witness: Rebecca Markudalu Address of witness: Name of witness: Address of witness: Name of witness: Address of witness: Name of witness: Name of witness: Name of witness: Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside Address of witness: Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside Address of witness: Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside Address of witness: Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside Address of witness: Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside Address of witness: Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside Address of witness:	as the duly authorise	ed attorney-in-fact of	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		Attorney-in-
Name of witness:       Robecca Markudall         Address of witness:       Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom         SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED/totros/setulbright.com       Mia Langston Attorney-in-fact         by       )         as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of GOLAR-NOR (UK) LIMITED       )         in the presence of:       )         Name of witness:       Robecca Markudale         Address of witness:       Robecca Markudale         Address of witness:       Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London Riverside	ALTERA INFRAST	<b>RUCTURE CREWING</b>	AS )		
Address of witness:          Aorton Rose FulbRight Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AO United Kingdom          SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEEDPrtonro&efulbright.com         by         as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of GOLAR-NOR (UK) LIMITED         )          in the presence of:         Name of witness:         Robuston         Market of Mar	in the presence of:		ada a serie de la companya de la co Porte de la companya d		
Address of witness:       Norton Rose FulbRight Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AO United Kingdom         SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEEDPrionro&efulbright.com       Mia Langston Mia Langston Attorney-in-fact         by       )         as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of GOLAR-NOR (UK) LIMITED       Mia Langston Attorney-in-fact         in the presence of:       )         Name of witness:       Norton Rose FulbRight Norton Rose FulbRight LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AO	enae 1997 - Angeles Angeles († 1997) 1997 - Angeles Angeles († 1997)		<b>1</b>		
Address of witness:       Norton Rose FulbRight Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AO United Kingdom         SiGNED and DELIVERED as a DEEDprionro&efulbright.com       Mia Langston         by       )         as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of       )         GOLAR-NOR (UK) LIMITED       )         in the presence of:       )         Name of witness:       Norton Rose Fulbright LLP Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside         Address of witness:       Norton Rose FulbRight Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside		ander og som en som En som en som En som en som			
Address of witness:       Norton Rose FulbRight Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom         SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED/tonro&efulbright.com       Mia Langston         by       )         as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of GOLAR-NOR (UK) LIMITED       Mia Langston Attorney-in-fact         in the presence of:       )         Name of witness:       Norton Rose FulbRight Norton Rose FulbRight Norton Rose FulbRight Norton Rose FulbRight Norton Rose FulbRight Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AO	en ante a la companya de la company En esta de la companya	n an	·····	***************************************	و و معنی ما می ما <sup>ر</sup> با و مار می مراجع
Address of witness:       Norton Rose FulbRight Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AO United Kingdom         SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEEDPrionro&efulbright.com       Mia Langston Mia Langston Attorney-in-fact         by       )         as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of GOLAR-NOR (UK) LIMITED       Mia Langston Attorney-in-fact         in the presence of:       )         Name of witness:       Norton Rose FulbRight Norton Rose FulbRight LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AO					an da ana ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang an
3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AO United Kingdom         SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEE®/rionro3/efulloright.com         by       )         as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of GOLAR-NOR (UK) LIMITED       )         in the presence of:       )         Mame of witness:       MaxAvadale         Address of witness:       Anorton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside         London SE1 2AO United Kingdom		ebeeca Mar	Endale.		an Anna an Israin
3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AO United Kingdom         SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEE®/rionro3/efulloright.com         by       )         as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of GOLAR-NOR (UK) LIMITED       )         in the presence of:       )         Mame of witness:       MaxAvadale         Address of witness:       Anorton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside         London SE1 2AO United Kingdom	Address of witness:	Norto	ON ROSE FULBRIG	1	
SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED ritonrosefulbright.com by ) as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of ) GOLAR-NOR (UK) LIMITED ) in the presence of: ) Name of witness: Cobeca MacAndala. Address of witness: Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AO United Kingdom		3 More	al onder a		and the second
by ) as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of ) GOLAR-NOR (UK) LIMITED ) in the presence of: ) Mia Langston Attorney-in-fact ) Name of witness: Cebecca Mortundale. Address of witness: Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 200 SE1	SIGNED and DELIVE	ERED as a DEED rion	n SE1 2AQ United Kin	igdom	
GOLAR-NOR (UK) LIMITED       )       Attorney-in-fact         in the presence of:       )         Name of witness:       )         Name of witness:       Norton Rose Fulbright LLP         Address of witness:       Norton Rose Fulbright LLP         More London SET 2000       Set 2000			)		
GOLAR-NOR (UK) LIMITED       )       Attorney-in-fact         in the presence of:       )         Name of witness:       )         Name of witness:       Morton Rose Fulbright LLP         Address of witness:       Norton Rose Fulbright LLP         3 More London Riverside       London SE1 2000	as the duly authorise	d attorney-in-fact of		t star	۰ 
in the presence of:       )         in the presence of:       )         Name of witness:       )         Name of witness:       Norton Rose Fulbright LLP         Address of witness:       Norton Rose Fulbright LLP         3 More London Riverside       London SE1 2000	·· .				
Name of witness: Rebecca Marchdale Address of witness: Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 240 H			) A		۰. <sup>۲</sup> ۰ ۰
Address of witness: Norton Rose Fulbright Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 240 Hiterside	in the presence of:				
Address of witness: Norton Rose Fulbright Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 240 Hiterside					
Address of witness: Norton Rose FULBRIGHT Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 240 Hiterside			**********		
Address of witness: Norton Rose Fulbright Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 240 Hiterside	د. ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰ - ۲۰۰۰	*****	ente para la construcción no esta esta porte esta		مرجعة المعد مرجعة المعد مرجع المرجع المعاد
Address of witness: Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 240 March 200	Name of witness:	eterno Ma	Budala		
NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 240 Hors					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
3 More London Riverside	radiods of milicas,	NORTON ROSE	FULBRIGHT		
		3 More London D	right LLP		ta a strandina a su A strandina a su
nortonrosefulbright.com	an an an an an an tha tha an				
		nortonrosefulbrigh	t.com		
		ent 1710 - Cheven Jacob, Lactor and Ja General III - Cheven Jacob, Cheven Jacob, Cheven Jacob, Cheven Jacob, Cheven Jacob, Cheven Jacob, Cheven Jacob, 1917 - Cheven Jacob, Cheve			

EU-#558166716-v6

SIGNED	and	DELIV	ERED	as	а	DEED	• . •

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

**ALTERA PRODUCTION UK LIMITED** 

in the presence of:

by

.

Name of witness: Celecoa Makandale

Address of witness:

**NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT** Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

54

)

)

)

)

)

Mia Langston Attorney-in-fact

SIGNED, SEALED and DELIVERED

as a DEED by

as the duly authorised attorney of

GINA KROG OFFSHORE PTE. LTD.

in the presence of:

Name of witness: Rebecca Martindale.

Address:

**NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT** Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

egeneration en travel genera

)

)

}

)

)

)

SIGNED, SEALED and DELIVERED as a DEED by as the duly authorised attorney of ALTERA INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES PTE. LTD.

Zsofia Bori Attorney-in-fact

Zsofia Bori Attorney-in-fact

in the presence of:

Address:

Name of witness: Rebecca Martuchelle

**NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT** Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

55

### FFTA Obligors

SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED

by

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

#### ALP KEEPER B.V.

in the presence of:

Name of witness: Rebecca Martindale.

Address of witness:

**Norton Rose Fulbright LLP** Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED by as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of ALP DEFENDER B.V.

Ella Atto

Ella Vries Attorney-in-Fact

Ella Vries

Attorney-in-Fact

in the presence of:

. . . . . .

Name of witness: Rebeaco Martindale

Address of witness:

Norton Rose FULBRIGHT Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

56

K	
nv	
~ 7	

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

#### ALP STRIKER B.V.

in the presence of:

### Name of witness: Repecca Martindale.

# Address of witnes NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT

Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

}

1

1

Ella Vries

Ella Vries

Attorney-in-Fact

Attorney-in-Fact

#### SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED

by

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

ALP SWEEPER B.V.

in the presence of:

Name of witness: Rebecca Martindale.

)

)

)

)

1

Address of witness:

**Norton Rose Fulbright** Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

57

SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ann an an ann an an an	an an an ann
by	5	Ella Vries Attorney-in-Fact	
as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of	)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
ALP MARITIME SERVICES B.V.	)		
in the presence of:	)		
	· · · · ·		
			transformation and an array of the second second array of the second s
	·····		
Name of witness: Rebecca Mou	tandale		
Address of witness:			
Norton Rose Fulbric	JLBRIGHT		
ୁ More London Rive	vrsido		
London SE1 2AQ L nortonrosefulbright.	Inited Kingdom		
SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED	)		
by	)	Ella Vries	
as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of	)	Attorney-in-Fact	
ALP MARITIME GROUP B.V.			
	)		
in the presence of:	)		
Name of witness: Rebecca A	10. 0- 1 1-		
Hame of Marciss. Meddeled IV	cartindale.		
Address of witness:			
Norton Rose F	SE FULBRIGHT		
3 Mole Londor	ulbright LLP		
nortonrosefulbr	ight.com		
	58		
····.			
EU-#558166716-v6			

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

#### ALP MARITIME HOLDING B.V.

in the presence of:

by

# Name of witness: Rebeard Martindale.

Address of witness:

#### **Norton Rose Fulbright** Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

59

)

)

)

)

Ella Vries

Attorney-in-Fact

SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED ) by ) Ella Vries as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of ) Attorney-in-Fact ALP CENTRE B.V. in the presence of: Name of witness: Rebecca Mara NORTON ROSE FULBRIG Norton Rose Fulbright LLP Address of witness: 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED ) by **Ella Vries** as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of ) Attorney-in-Fact ALP FORWARD B.V. in the presence of: Name of witness: Rebecca Martinobile Address of witness: NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com 60 EU-#558166716-v6

FFTA Obligors			•
SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED			
by	)		
		Ella Vries	
as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of		Attorney-in-Fact	
ALP GUARD B.V.	)		
in the presence of:	1 · · ·		
in the presence of.	)		
			and a second
	******		
3,4,7,4,8,4,4,4,4,4,4,4,4,4,4,4,4,4,4,4,4			
Name of witness: Rebeaca Mar	tindall.		
Address of witness: NORTON ROS			
Norton Rose Fu	Ilbright LI P		
3 More London	Riverside		
nortonrosefulbri	AQ United Kingdom		
	Auroom		
FFTA Obligors			
	\		
SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED	)		
by	)		
as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of	)	a Vries	
-		orney-in-Fact	
ALP WINGER B.V.	)		
in the presence of:	)		 
		ेडू	
*****			
-			
Name of witness: Coloecca Ma	Andall.		
Address of witness: NORTON Poor	Sing on -		
Norton Rose Fulb 3 More London	right I i p		
London SE1 2AQ nortonrosefulbrigh	United Kingdom		$r_{1} = r_{1} + r_{2} + + r_{2$
	r.com		and the second secon Second second second Second second
	61		
EU-#558166716-v6			

values de constante constante d

by

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

#### ALP OCEAN TOWAGE HOLDING B.V.

in the presence of:

Name of witness: Respecca Maikindale.

....

Address of witness:

**Norton Rose Fulbright** Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

62

)

)

)

)

Ella Vries

Attorney-in-Fact

SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED

by

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

#### ALP ACE B.V.

in the presence of:

Name of witness: Rebecca Matindale

Address of witness:

#### **NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT**

Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED

by

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

ALP IPPON B.V.

in the presence of:

Name of witness: Repecca Martindolle.

63

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

)

Ella Vries

Ella Vries

Attorney-in-Fact

Attorney-in-Fact

Address of witness:

# **NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT**

Nortori Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

					ار از محمد میشد. در از محمد از محمد از میروند میروند میشد. محمد میروند که محمد میروند محمد از محمد
	e europeento en futotte que compo no tracent	raan di ka di ta ta keta keta ka		and a state of the second s Second second	ta da anti-arresta da anti-arresta da anti- arresta da anti-arresta da anti-arresta da anti- arresta da anti-arresta da anti-arresta da anti-arresta da anti-
	SIGNED and DELIVE	RED as a DEED	<b>)</b>		an a
	by		)		
	as the duly authorised	attorney-in-fact of	)	Ella Vries	
	ALP MARITIME CON		>	Attorney-in-Fact	a an
		INAUIONS D.V.	)		
	in the presence of:		)		
and a second					and a second
	Name of witness:	becca Mour	tuddle		
	Address of witness:		E FULBRIGHT		
		Nonon Hose Fulbr	iaht LI P		
		3 More London Rh	ansida		
		London SE1 2AQ nortonrosefulbright	United Kingdom		
		and a second sec			
na in an an trach Taol ann Taol ann an tao					
and a state of the second s					
					14. 
					. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
anan galar Tanan galar					
					المراجعين. المراجعين المراجعين
			64		
			<b>V</b> "Y		
	EU-#558166716-v6				

S	IGNED and DEL	IVERED as a DEE	D			
	LTERA AL RAY					
		TAN L.L.V.				
B	у:					
	Patr	ick Smith				
	Attori	ney-in-Fact				
Ti	itle:				a for a supervision of the supervision affects and the supervision of the supervision	
n jaar katalon settember Segunda Santa Santa Santa	the presses of	na a la construction de la constru La construction de la construction d				
in 	the presence of	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	a 🕽 ante presidente. A			
	·		n de la construction de la construc- construction		ng Mangalan kanang sa	
					یر کار کار کار کار در در د	
	*****	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			<ul> <li>A state of the sta</li></ul>	a ser a construction de la constru La construction de la construction d La construction de la construction d
N	amo of witness:	Palaa	Marindal	^		
			Nannaan			
A	ddress of witness	S: NORTON				
		Norton Rose F		HT		
		London SE1 2	Hiverside		anta ang kanalan na sa	
	and an ann an Anna Anna Ann an Anna Anna An	nortonrosefulbi	AQ United Kingdor	n		
		italija (k. 1997). 1997 - Andrea Statistica, statistica (k. 1997). 1997 - Andrea Statistica (k. 1997).				
S	IGNED and DEL	IVERED as a DEE	D			
<b>V</b>	OYAGEUR L.L.	<b>C.</b>		a an		
						ta esta da carta de la cart La carta de la c
B	iy:				and Antonio State (1997) Antonio State (1997) Antonio State (1997)	
N	lame: Patri	ick Smith				
Т	itle: Attorn	ney-in-Fact				
in	n the presence of					
						and a second second Second second second Second second
N	lame of witness:	Rebecca	Markind	210		
A	ddress of witnes	S.				
		NORTON RC	SE FULBRIGH	<b>r</b>		
		3 More London P				
		London SE1 2AC nortonrosefulbrig	) [ Initian W			
			65			
			~~			
Ē	U-#558166716-v6					

ру			Zsofia Bori
as the duly authorised	attorney-in-fact of		Attorney-in-fac
ALTERA INFRASTR			
PRODUCTION AS			
n the presence of:			
in the presence of.	n an		
		n an	
	ebeeca M	~ Audalo	an an an an Arban an Arban an Arban ann an Arban an Arban ann an Arban ann an Arban ann an Arban ann an Arban a Arban an Arban ann an Arban an Arban an Arban ann an Arban a Arban an Arban an Arban an Arban an Arban ann a
Address of witness:	Norton Rose Fu 3 More London	Riverside AQ United Kingdom	
SIGNED and DELIVE	RED as a DEED	) (************************************	
<b>у</b>	and an an an an an an an an an an an an an a	1997 - 1997 -	Zsofia Bori
as the duly authorise	d attorney-in-fact of	n felo og på som en standarden er en som en som er som er en som er en For en som er en som e	Attorney-in-fact
ALTERA INFRASTR	UCTURE	<b>)</b>	
	NAS	)	
n the presence of:	ی میں بیان کی ہیں۔ 1997ء - میں ایک کی میں میں کی ا 1997ء - میں میں میں ایک کی میں میں میں میں میں میں میں میں میں می		
ares 1995 - Maria Santa 1996 - Maria Santa Santa Santa Santa Santa			
	•		
	ebecca Ne	"Andall"	
vame or withess. 👔	and the second s		

Norton Rose Fubright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

#### **ALTERA INFRASTRUCTURE**

#### **NORWAY AS**

by

in the presence of:

Name of witness: Rebecca Mandolle

Address of witness:

### **NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT**

)

)

1

)

Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

SIGNED and DELIVERED as a DEED Patrick Smith by as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

**PIRANEMA PRODUCTION AS** 

in the presence of:



Matthew Buxton Attorney-in-fact

Name of witness: Rebecca Martindalle.

67

Address of witness:

#### NORTON ROSE PULBRIGHT

Norton Rose Fulbright LLP **3 More London Riverside** London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

signed, sealed and DELIVERED as a DEED by Attorney-in-Fact as the duly authorised attorney of

ALTERA INFRASTRUCTURE PRODUCTION

(SINGAPORE) PTE. LTD.

in the presence of:

Name of witness: Rebecca Martindale.

Address:

NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

)

)

)

)

)

Signed and sealed as a deed for and on behalf of Altera Operations Australia Pty Ltd ACN 637 396 699 by its attorney

under power of attorney dated 14 December 2012 in accordance with section 126 of the *Corporations Act 2001*:

Signature of puttorised Spratentative

Attorney-in-Fact Name of authorised representative (BLOCK LETTERS)

#### **EXECUTED** as a **DEED**

for and on behalf of

#### ALTERA PIRANEMA SERVIÇOS DE

#### PETRÓLEO LTDA

by its duly authorised attorney-in-fact

in the presence of:

## Patrick Smith Attorney-in-Fact

Attorney-in-Fact

)

)

)

)

)

)





Witness Name:

Address: NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT<sup>dress</sup>:

Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

Occupation:

Simeon Paytov Trainee Solicitor



# **NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT**

Norton Rose Fulbright LLP **3 More London Riverside** London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

Occupation:

SIGNED, SEALED and DELIVERED as a DEED by as the duly authorised attorney of **ALTERA INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES** PTE. LTD.

in the presence of:

) )

)

)

}

Zsofia Bori Attorney-in-fact

Name of witness: Kobecca Marandoll. **NORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT** Address: Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 70 **3 More London Riverside** London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom

EU-#558166716-v6 nortonrosefulbright.com

SI	GNED	and	DELI	VERED	as a	DEED	

by

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of

#### ALTERA INFRASTRUCTURE

#### NORWAY AS

in the presence of:

Matthew Buxton Attorney-in-fact

Name of witness:

Address of witness:

Obecco Moutandale Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

)

3

)

)

)

)

1

and the second

by Attorney-in-Fact

as the duly authorised attorney-in-fact of ()

ALTERA VOYAGEUR

**PRODUCTION LIMITED** 

in the presence of:

Name of witness: Repeara Marandall.

Address of witness:

AORTON ROSE FULBRIGHT Norton Rose Fulbright LLP 3 More London Riverside London SE1 2AQ United Kingdom nortonrosefulbright.com

EU-#558166716-v6

SIGNED and DELIVEREI		
by Patrick Sn		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Attorney-In-		
as the duly authorised atto	orney-in-fact of )	
ALTERA INFRASTROUT	URE	
(PHILIPPINES) INC.	$\mathbf{\hat{s}}_{i}$	
in the presence of:	$\mathbf{y}$	
	an a	
Name of witness:	ecca Markindale	
Address of witness:	Norton Rose FULB	RIGHT
	3 More London Riverside	بالا المربي المراجع المراجع المربي . المراجع المربي المراجع المربي المربي المراجع .
	London SE1 2AQ United Kin nortonrosefulbright.com	gdom